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SECTION 1

Introduction & Review of the year 2007/08
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Explanatory Foreword

Foreword and statement of responsibilities

This document sets out the financial statements for Barnet Council, the council's pension fund statements
and group accounts.

The authority’s responsibilities
The authority is required to:
+« make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one of
its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In Barnet that officer is the
Chief Finance Officer {CFO), Clive Medlam.

* manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its
assets.

= approve the statement of accounts,
internal financial control
The Council recognises its responsibilities to ensure proper financial management and control of its affairs.
The council approves an annual revenue and capital budget and publishes annual accounts, which are
appreved by the council and subject te external audit.
The Chief Finance Officer reports o the Executive Director for Resources, though has direct access to the
Chief Executive and Leader when required. The council's Corporate Governance Directorate
(incorporating internal Audit and the Corporate Anti Fraud Team) and the Resources Directorate hold the
responsibility for leading on risk management strategy. The Corporate Governance Directorate maintains a
regufar review of the council’s financial systems and investigates any irregularities that arise. Further
information is contained within the annual governance statement.
The Chief Finance Officer’s responsibilities
The CFO is responsible for the preparation of the authority’s statement of accounts in accordance with
proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice in local authority accounting in the
United Kingdom.
In preparing the statement of accounts, the CFO has:

+ selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistentiy;

+ made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ complied with the code of practice.
The CFO has also:

+ kept proper accounting records which are up to date;

o taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The CFO should sigh and date the statement of accounts for the year ended 31 March 2008.
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The Statement of Accounts - Introduction

This details the process in place during 2007/08 for ensuring proper financial management and control. It
then reviews the effectiveness and raises any major issues that have arisen in the year.

There have been significant changes in the format of the accounts for 2007/08 as a result of the

application of the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) 2007, which has altered the presentation
of these accounts when compared to previous years.

Statement of accounting policies

An explanation of the basis on which the accounts have been prepared and their compliance with the
guidance of the relevant reguiatory bodies.

The authority’s accounting statements comprise:
(] The ‘core’ financial statements:

Income and Expenditure {I&E) account
This represents a summary of the resources generated and consumed by the authority in the year. The

account also shows how the council's services are funded: the four main sources being specific income,
council tax, redistributed non-domestic rates and government grants.

Statement of movement on the general fund balance

This is a reconciliation statement which shows how the balance of resources generated/consumed in the
year links in with the statutory requirements for raising council tax.

Statement of total recognised gains and losses (STRGL)
This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the council for the year and shows the aggregate
increase in its net worth. [n addition to the surplus generated on the income and expenditure account, it

includes gains and losses relating to the revaluation of fixed assets and re-measurement of the net liability
to cover the cost of retirement benefits.

Balance sheet

This records the authority's year-end financial position. It shows fhe balances and reserves at the
authority's disposal, its long-term debt, net current assets or liabilities, and summarised information on the
fixed assets held. It excludes the pension fund.

Cash flow statement

This summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with third parties for capital
and revenue transactions.

(i) The applicable supplementary single entity financial statem ents

Housing revenue account (HRA)

This racords the authority’s statutory obligation to account separately for the costs of its landlord role. It
shows major elements of housing revenue expenditure — maintenance, administration and capital
financing costs — and how these are met by rents, housing subsidy and other income.

Collection fund statement

The Council is responsible for collecting council tax and non-domestic rates, the latter on behalf of the
government. The proceeds of council tax are distributed to two preceptors: the council itself and the
Greater London Authority (GLA). The fund shows the income due from council tax, non-domestic rates and
the application of the proceeds.
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(iiif  Group accounts

The authority has only one wholly owned subsidiary company, which is an arms length management
organisation (ALMO), Barnet Homes Ltd, which it has full control and influence over through the
management agreement. The primary aim in establishing this company is to remove it from public sector
borrowing controls and to allow a greater commercial freedom. These group accounts therefore show the
consolidated position for the council. For statutory purposes Barnet Homes Ltd produce their own
statement of accounts.

The SORP requires the council to produce group versions of its ‘core’ financial statements:

group income and expendifure account

group statement of fotal recognised gains and losses
group bhalance sheet

group cash flow statement

It also requires the production of a further statement which demonstrates how the group statement links fo
the council’s own income and expenditure account:

» reconciliation of the single entity income and expenditure account surplus or deficit to the group
income and expenditure account surplus or deficit

{iv) Pension fund accounts

The pension fund account shows the contributions to the fund during 2007/08 and the benefits paid from it.
The net assets statement sets out the financial position for the fund as at 31 March 2008. The fund is
separately managed by the council acting as trustee and its accounts are separate from those of the
council.
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Review of the financial year

Changes to and interpretation of the statement of accounts

Before reviewing the council's performance with the previous financial year, it is important to make readers
aware of the changes to the basis on which the accounts were prepared, especially as theses changes are
not as immediately obvious as those which accurrad in 2006/07. The statements have been prepared in
line with the statement of recommended practice (SORP) for local authorities, and the changes for
2007/08 are part of the continuing wider move to bring local authority accounting more in line with that of
the private sector and other parts of the public sector.

The first of the changes is the creation of the revaluation reserve. Whilst this could, on the surface, appear
to be a straight replacement of the old fixed asset restatement account {(FARA), it is importantly different in
that it is, from an accounting perspective, far cleaner. Under the previous SORP, fransactions other than
revaluations were posted to the FARA resulting in a lack of fransparency. Such transactions, for example
reductions in value and non-erthancing capital expenditure, now have to be accounted for as impairments
and are therefore visible within the main statements. To enable the creation of the revaluation reserve,
which has been done at zero, the FARA and the previous capital financing account have been merged {0
be the capital adjustment account.

The other significant change relates to the measurement and accouniing treaiment of the Council's
borrowings and investments, or “financial instruments’, to give them their technical title. As with the
introduction of the revaluation reserve, these changes form part of the gradual alignment of local authority
accounting practice. The financial instrument changes are technically complicated and impact on the
Income and Expenditure Account by increasing the deficit (compared to what the deficit would have been
under the pravious rules). However, as allowed under statutory regulations, the effect of this was reversed
out “helow the line’ of the Income and Expenditure Account fo avoid any impact on General Fund
balances. Despite a change to the way in which a small proportion of the authority’s debt is measured,
there is only a minimal impact on the balance sheet — as detafied in the Statement of Recognised Gains
and Losses (STRGL).

These changes are explained further within the relevant sections of the statement of accounting policies.

it is important that the income & expenditure account is viewed alongside the council’s financial outturn
reported to the Cabinet Resources Commitiee in June 2008. The I&E account is reconciled back to the
outturn through two further statements, the movement of general fund balances and the statement of
recognised gains and losses, which, in effect, contain the technical and other accounting adjusiments
which ensure that certain liabilities do not impact on the council tax payer.

| feel it worth commenting that, as drawn out above and noted later, there is significant additional work for
officers to plan for and incorporate these changes each year. The concern in bringing out these changes
is a loss of accessibility and transparency for the readers of these accounts, in particular local residents,
and that their needs from the documents, assurance on the stewardship of public funds, is different from
that of the readers of private sector accounts, i.e. profitability andfor the potential for investment. This view
has been and will continue to be represented to the relevant bodies in responding to consultations of
future changes to the accounting requirements for local authorities.

The Council

It is important to briefly highlight the consistently high performance of Council services. Our achievements
overall were recognised by the independent Audit Commission, which has awarded Barnet the highest
possible 4 star rating. This means we are considered an excellent council and among the best in the
country and that all cur services have been found to be performing well.

As part of this, the Councii’'s Use of Resources assessment, which encompasses the overall arrangement
for financial management, asset management, performance management and governance and control,
improved to a strong level 3. As part of the assessment, we were aiso recognised as having notable
practice for financial reporting, through the Councll’'s annual finance and performance report and summary
statement of accounts document, and its internal control framework.

This progress is due to continued focus on key priorities and an understanding of the significance of
delivery against shared objectives. The Corporate Plan continues to be the central record of all key
targets, which are measured to demonstrate corporate success or failure. This has been the basis of our
performance management framework for the past five years.
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Overall financial performance and financial management

This year has again seen further improvement in the financial heaith of the organisation with the Councit's
general fund balance increasing to £17.4m. Further to this, the level of earmarked reserves has also been
increased to £18.2m fo take the total level of reserves and balances, excluding balances held by locally
managed schools, to over £36m. This is a very significant achievement for the authority and gives i a
position of significant financial strength from which to explore potential future opportunities and manage
financial risks.

This has, also, been achieved with sub inflation increases in the level of local taxation in the past four
years and with significant reductions In the council’s budget. Over the last five years, there has been
£59m of efficiencies and reductions taken from the base budget of the authority.

This improvement in the financial health is reflected in the overall improvements in the council’s financial
management. This has manifested in improvements in the financial systems, more detailed and more
timely financial monitoring reports, development of financial risk registers and the approval of the council’s
medium term financial strategy. This improvement was recognised by the use of resources judgement
where the council’s external auditor has now assessed the authority as performing above the minimum
requirements in all areas and has identified two areas where it is achieving notable practice.

A further point to draw out is the improvement in the management and collection of outstanding monies
owed to the Council. It reduced by a further £3.7m in 2007/08 on top of the reduction of £9.8m in 2006/07,
which represents and enormous achievement by the Revenues Services team. The Council's approach
was formalised in March whean the Cabinet Resources Committee approved the revised debt management
palicy.

In the annual audit and inspection letter in March, the Council's externai auditor highlighted that the level
of balances of £12.1m at that time remained relatively low for an authority the size of Barnet. Now that the
accounts have been closed, with balances increasing to over £17m, | feel that this issue has been fully
addressed. Nonetheless, the level of balances and reserves will, of course, remain as a key consideration
in the Council setting the annual budget and Council Tax each March.

The general fund

The general fund contains the income and expenditure relating to the services of the council, other than
council housing. In 2007/08 the Council planned net expenditure of £404m as set out in the following table,

Original council | Actual net spend | Difference (actuat
2007/08 spending plan original)
£'000 £'000 £'000
Individual schools' budget 187,154 185,503 (1,651)
Net service expenditure 217,436 204,837 (12,599)
Contribution (to)/from balances (326) 6,926 6,600
Budget requirement 404,264 397,266 (7,650)

The detail of the council's spending is set out in the income and expenditure account, which shows the
majority of gross expenditure was on education, housing and sccial services. The gross expenditure
totalled £934m and gross income £829m (including dedicated schools grant), to give a net expenditure of
£5m. The following graph shows the main sources of revenue financing:
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Sources of Revenue Financing

Revenue Support
Grant, 3%

Business Rates,
17%

Dedicated
Schools Grant,
45%

Council Tax, 35%

A key aspect is that 65% of expenditure is funded by government either through general or specific grants.

When the 2007/08 budget was approved by the Council in March 2007, the estimated 31 March 2008
general fund balance was £17.45m (excluding schools). The Council also had specific earmarked
reserves of £12.39m, as at 1 April 2007.

Balances General fund Schools Total

£'000 £000 £'000
Brought forward 01/04/2007 12,099 10,272 22 371
2007/08 Outturn 5,348 1,898 7,248
QOutstanding school advances - (246) (246)
Carried forward 31/03/2008 17 447 11,924 29,371

Housing Revenue Account

The Housing Revenue Account is a statement of the income and expenditure on the council's ring fenced
social housing. The council is landlord for 11,195 dwellings, and the income and expenditure relating to
this is, as said, ring-fenced, that is, the Council is prevented by legisiation from subsidising the cost of its
social housing from its general fund and vice versa,

In 2007/08, the Council spent over £61.2 million on its social housing and had income of just under
£50.6m. After financing and appropriation adjustments, there was an in-year deficit of £0.67m million on
the account to take the accumulated HRA balances to £4.16m. This deficit is a distinct cause for concern,
particularly with regard to the future long term viability of the HRA, as the commencement of the major
regeneration of some housing estates becomes closer. As the regeneration projects progress, the number
of properties within the HRA will fall and this will lead to a significant reduction in rental income. There will
not, however, be a proporfionate fall in the associated costs, which is likely to lead to an ongoing base

budget problem for the HRA.

Capital programme

The Council has continued its investment in priority areas over the last twelve months, such as scheols
modernisation, bringing its housing stock up to the decent homes standard, improvements to the highways
and enabling major regeneration programmes. The commitment to modernising the authority has aiso
continued with the further development of its core systems and enhancement of its infrastructure.

To do this the Council has maximised the use of both its own money, via receipts from the sale of surplus
assefs or via prudential borrowing, and external sources of funding, such as government grants and

contributions from private developers.
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During December 2007 and January 2008 two bridges were successfully installed on Aerodrome Road.
The replacement of the two masonry arch railway bridges removes a height and capacity restriction on this
road which forms the most direct fink between the Colindale Regeneration area and the Transport for
London Road Network (TLRN). This will improve access to the regeneration area for pedestrians and
cyclists, enable the provision of an east-west bus link and ease congestion at the Aerodrome Road/A41
junction.

Over the last year, the procurement process for the £90m rebuild of six of the Council's primary schools
has been completed. Whilst reports to the Cabinet Resources Committee have included updates on
projects being slipped, this stage of the programme, which is comfortably the iargest efement of the overall
capital programme, has been completed six months ahead of schedule thus enabling the build of the first
school to commence early. Due to the inflation associated with building contracts, this is not only a
significant accomplishment but will also enable the mitigation of that inflationary risk. In the course of the
next twelve months, we will begin the marketing of the surplus land at the schools to achieve the capital
receipts that will fund the schemes and the biggest remaining financial risk relates to the values achieved
being below expectations.

Treasury management

The past year has again been one of strong treasury management performance that has been central to
the overall improvement in the financial position of the Council. The authority has previously taken
advantage of the opportunities to borrow in advance of need to ensure securing debt at affordable rates
and the investment of these funds has seen an excellent level of return, In 2007/08, the average
investment rate of 5.91% was achieved against a benchmark return of the 7 day LIBID rate of 5.58%. This
additional 0.33% performance achieved an extra £903k interest eamings.

The councif's current debt portfolio has been described as ‘one of the best in the country’ by the authority's
external freasury advisors, though due to the decisions to borrow early, the council’s balance sheet does
look slightly skewed. This is bacause a proportion of the schemes are yet to commence in earnest and
therefore the capital financing is being invested until such time as the expenditure is incurred. The
Council's average rate of borrowing on its portfolio is 4.09% and during the year the average available
rates for long term borrowing reached were 4.90% thus demonstrating the benefits of the decision to
borrow when rates were significantly lower. The reliance on prudential borrowing was, however, again
highlighted as part of the setting of the 2008/09 budget as being unsustainable and only minimal further
schemes were added to the Council's capital programme. Emphasis continues to be placed on the
requirement for new projects to obtain funding through external sources or to contain a significant invest to
save element,

Pension fund

The pension fund is part of the local government pension scheme with contributions into the fund coming
from both members of the scheme and the employers (including Barnet). In 2007/08, the fund received
contributions of £44.43m (£8.91m from members, £33.36m from the employers and £2.168m from transfers
in} and made payments to pensioners of £28.79m.

The value of the fund as at 31 March 2008 was £548.64m, the majority of which is invested in the stock
market. The fund increased in value by £8.13m during 2007/08 but had a negative return of 0.7%. The
funding level was estimated by the council’s actuary to be 67% as at 31 March 2008, which is a slightly
worse than the position fwelve months ago. Both the negative returning and the funding level reflect the
position of the market in the final quarter of 2007/08 where there was a significant fall in the value of all
virtually stocks and shares as part of the credit crunch. The fund was ranked in the 23 percentile by WM
Company Ltd who measures the performance of the pension fund against a peer group of other focal
authority funds.

There was an important change to the governance arrangements of the pension during the year with the
creation of the Pension Fund committee which now holds the responsibility for the management of the
fund. The commitiee has further enhanced the active management of the fund by challenging the three
appointed fund managers on their performance and reflecting that performance in the reallocation of funds
between them. The Pension Fund committee is also responsible for the scrutiny and approval of the
accounts of the fund and this occurred at the meeting on 26 June 2008. The pension fund accounts are
subject to a separate audit outside the review of the Council's financial statements and this year the Audit
Commission has explicitly identified a separate fee of £40,000 for doing this. That fee was previously
included in the overall cost of the Barnet audit but there has been no reduction in that fee meaning the
total cost of the accounts inspection has increased by approximately 10% when compared to last year.
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L.ooking forward

As part of the approval of the annual budget, the council alsc agrees the draft financial forward plan which
projects the potential council tax requirement for future years. The current forward plan identifies a
significant resource gap for each of the next three years to achieve an acceptable council tax increase and
this represents another considerable challenge for the authority. This situation has been exacerbated by
another poor settlement from Ceniral Government following the comprehensive spending review.

As a result of the continued poor setlements, the Council has & heavy reliance on the income from
Council Tax to fund service provision. This position exacerbates the particular annual budget problem the
Council faces as the cost of services increase at a rate significantly above that of both the settiement and,
due to the Counci's commitment in its medium term financial strategy, Council Tax. When combined with
the increased demands placed on the Council, this means we are facing a position of having to identify in
the region of £10m of savings every year in order to achieve a balanced budget.

As we close of 2007/08 we alsoc need to lock to prepare for the closing of future years accounts and, in
particular, the potential requirements of International Accounting Standards, As is often the case, the
exact requirements are unclear at this stage but it will be essential for Council officers to look at the
potential systems and information requiremenis and we are already planning briefing sessions in
conjunction with our external auditor,

In May, Cabinet authorised the Chief Executive {o initiate a review of the organisation of the Council and fo
identify potential options for delivering Council services in the future. The review will look at the future
challenges facing the authority and how we should organise ourselves to continue to deliver excellent
services while freeing up capacity to deal with new and iniractable issues. The initial results will be
reported back to Cabinet in December.

The statement of the Chief Finance Officer

The required financial statements appear on pages 31-82 and have been prepared in accordance
with the accounting policies set out on pages 24-29,

Clive Medlam BSc., CPFA
Chief Finance Officer

Statement of the Chairman of the Audit Committee,

| confirm these accounts were approved by the Audit Commiltee on behalf of the London Borough of
Barnet at the meeting held on 30 June 2008.

Clir Jeremy Daviet—"" %

Chairman of Audit Commitiee

London Burough of Bariel Statement of Accounts 2000/08 11




London Borough of Barnet Statement of Accounts 2007/08 12




Independent Auditors’ Report to London Borough of Barnet

Opinion on the financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of London Borough of Barnet for the year ended 31 March 2008
under the Audit Commission Act 1998, which comprise the income and Expenditure Account, the
Statement of Movement of General Fund Balance, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Total Recognised
Gains and Losses, the Cash Flow Statement, the supplementary statements and related notes and the
Group accounts. The pension fund accounts comprise the Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement, and
the related notes. The financial statements and pension fund accounts have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out within them.

These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out within them. This
report is made solely to London Borough of Barnet in accordance with Part I of the Audit Commission Act
1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 36 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors
and of Audited Bodies prepared by the Audit Commission. To the fuilest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility o anyone other than the Authority or its Members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer and auditors

The Chief Finance Officer's responsibilities for preparing the financial statements in accordance with
" applicable laws and regulations and the Statement of Recommended Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2006 are set out in the Statement of Responsibilities. Our responsibility
is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financlal statements presents fairly the financial position of
the Authority in accordance with applicable laws and regulations and the Statement of Recommended
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2008. We review whether the statement on
internal control reflects compliance with CIPFA's guidance ‘The Statement on Internal Control in Local
Government: Meeting the Reqguirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003’ published on 2 Apiril
2004. We report if it does not comply with proper practices specified by CIPFA or if the statement is
misleading or inconsistent with ofher information we are aware of from our audit of the financial
statements.

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether the Statement on Internal Control
covers all risks and controls. We are also not required to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority's corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures. We read other information
published with the financial statements, and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial
statements. This other information comprises only the Explanatory Foreword. We consider the implications
for our report if we hecome aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the
financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code of Audit Practice
issued by the Audit Commission and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the Authority in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the financial statements.
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Opinion

in our opinion the financial statements present fairly, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations
and the Statement of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2008,
the financial position of the Authority and its Group as at 31 March 2008 and its income and expenditure
for the year then ended.

The pension fund accounts present fairly, in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2005, the financial transactions of the Pension Fund
during the year ended 31 March 2008 and the amount and disposition of the fund’s assets and liabilities as
at 31 March 2008 other than liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the end of the scheme year.

Conclusion on arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in the use of resources

Authority’s Responsihilities

The authority is responsibie for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to regularly
review the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. Under the Local Government Act 1999,
the authority is required to prepare and publish a Best Value Performance Plan summarising the
authority’s assessment of its performance and position in relation to its  statutory duty to make
arrangements to ensure continuous improvement In the way in which its functions are exercised, having
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

We are required by the Audit Commission Act 1998 to be satisfied that proper arrangements have been
made by the authority for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code
of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires us to report to you our coenclusion in relation to
proper arrangements, having regard to relevant criteria specified by the Audit Commission for principal
local authorities. We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from
concluding that the authority has made such proper arrangements. We are not required to consider, nor
have we considered, whether all aspects of the authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

We are required by section 7 of the Local Government Act 1989 to carry out an audit of the authority’s best
value performance plan and issue a report:

= cettifying that we have done so

= stating whether we believe that the plan has been prepared and published in
accordance with statutory requirements set out in section 6 of the Local Government
Act 1999 and statutory guidance

. where relevant, making any recommendations under section 7 of the Local
Government Act 1999.

Conclusion

We have undertaken our audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and we are satisfied that,
having regard to the criteria for principal local authorities specified by the Audit Commission and published
in July/August 2005, in all significant respects, London Borough of Barnet made proper arrangements fo
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2007,
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Best Value Performance Plan

We issued our statutory report on the audit of the authority’s best value performance plan for the financial
year 2007/08 in December 2006. We did not identify any matters to be reported to the authority and did
not make any recommendations on procedures in relation to the plan.

Certificate

We have carried out the audit of the accounts in accordance with the requirements of the Audit
Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission. The audit cannot
be formally concluded and an audit certificate issued until we have completed our consideration of matters
brought to our attention by local authority electors. We are satisfied that these matters do not have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Signature: ..........cooeeiiei Date: ...
Grant Thornton UK LLP,

36 Finsbury Square,
fondon EC2P 2YU
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SECTION 2

Annual Governance Statement
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2007/08

1. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

Barnet London Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty
under the Local Government Act 1899 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement
in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council Is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions,
and which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

The statement explains how Barnet London Borough Council delivers good governance and
reviews the effectiveness of these arrangements. It also meets the requirements of regulation 4(2)
of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003, as amended by the Accounts and Audit
{(Amendment) Regulations 2008, which require the Council to publish a statement on intemal
control in accordance with proper practice. Proper practice has been defined as an Annual
Governance Statement.

2. THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Governance Framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by
which the Authority is directed and controlied and activities through which it accounts to, engages
with, and leads the community. It enables the Authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate cost
effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level. The system also recognises that it is not possible, or even desirable in
a value for money context, to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives.
The system of internal control and risk management is based on an ongoing process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievernent of the Council's policies, aims and objectives, to
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to
manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Barnet London Borough Council for the year
ended 31 March 2008 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

3. THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

= Identifying and communicating the authority’s vision of its purpose and infended outcomes for
citizens and service users.

For the relevant period the Council’s corporate priorities were set out in its Corporate Plan 2007/8-
2010/11. The Corporate Plan sets out the Council's vision for the organisation. It affirms the
values and aspirations of Barnet for the place, the people and the organisation. The corporate
priorities are clearly defined in the Corporate Plan which demonstrates how the Council will
achieve its objectives over the four year period and reviews progress fo date. The Corporate Plan
is approved by the Council's Executive and is published on the Council’s website.

Corporate priorities are cascaded through Service Plans and populate targets for service teams
and individuals.

* Reviewing the Authority’s vision and is implications for the Authority's governance
arrangements.
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Progress against corporate priority targets is monitored through the corporate performance
framework. Targets are reviewed and revised upon receipt of final year end data. The vision is
reviewed on an annual basis with the publication of a fresh Corporate Plan. One of the key
objectives under Corporate Priority “More Cholce Better Value” is to "enhance and further develop
corporate governance®”. Governance arrangements are reviewed annhually by the Special
Committee (Constitution Review) whose recommendations are reported to the full Council for
ratification.

s Measuring the quality of services for users, ensuring they are delivered in accordance with the
authority’s objectives and ensuring they represent the best use of resources.

Manitoring of performance against the corporate priority objectives is via the FirstStat process,
Finance & Performance Review meetings and Member Challenge. These processes have been
developed to monitor business/service performance and have involvement at the highest Member
and Officer levels within the Council. [n addition, there are also quarterly performance reports to
Qverview & Scrutiny Committees and high level exception reporting to CRC within the monitoring
reports.

During the relevant pericd the Business Improvement Team has collated data from services for
Quarterly Performance Monitoring Tables and Best Value Performance Indicators. The
information presented in the monitoring tables is assessed by the Business Improvement Team
and Head of Service to provide a traffic light rating on performance for each key measure linked to
service objectives. This information is then reported to Scrutiny Committees and Finance &
Performance Review meetings.

Services must ensure that systems are in place to collect reievant performance data all year
round. [t is the Service’s responsibility fo ensure the accuracy of the data provided, the existence
of detailed audit management trails supporting the data and that the data is robust. Adopting a
Data Quality Policy and undertaking robust challenge and scrutiny through strengthened corporate
governance (FirstStat, FP&R) has resulted in improving data quality and performancefservice
delivery improvement.

Ensuring best use of resources is delivered through a range of mechanisms including FirstStat
and Finance & Performance Reviews, Value for Money reviews; Internal Audit reports and support
on procurement exercises from the Corporate Procurement Team. Also Key Priorities Board,
Capital & Assets Group and, at a lower level, programme boards.

The Council is also one of a number of London horoughs that participates in the annual Residents
Survey which provides comparative data on satisfaction levels with service delivery for and
between the different local authorities. Information from this and other consultation exercises
assist in driving forward service improvements.

» Defining and documenting the roles of the execufive, non-exectitive, scrutiny and officer
functions with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for effective comimunication.

The Council has a Constitution that is subject to annual review by the Special Commitiee
{Constitution Review). The Constitution sets out the governance arrangements operating within
the Council. They are a Leader and Cabinet model of Executive. Council appoints a Leader and
Cabinet. The Leader allocates executive responsibilities and the Council appoints committees to
discharge regulatory and scrutiny responsibilities.  All relevant roles, terms of reference and
delegated responsibilittes are set out in the Constitution which is published on the Council's
website. The Constitution aiso includes Protocols for Member — Officer Relations.

o Developing communication and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of
behaviour for members and staff.

Councillors and co-opted members are required to comply with the Members Code of Conduct
which is set out in the Constitution. There are a number of other protocols which apply the

. principles of the Code to specific areas of Council activity. The Standards Committee is required
to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by councillors and co-opted members, Officers
are also subject to a code of conduct and a number of other policies and procedures refating to
their employment. These policies and procedures are published on the Council's infranet.
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s Reviewing and updating standing orders; standing financial instructions; a scheme of
delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals which clearly define how decisions are
taken and the processes and controls required to manage risks.

The Council's Standing Orders and Financial Regulations are included within the annual reviews
carried out by the Special Committee (Constitution Review) and formed part of the 2007/8 review.
Delegation is also dealt with in the Constitution and Officers are required to draw up a list of
specific powers delegated to them to be published in the Council's website. These arrangements
will be reviewed in 2008. The Constitution explains how decisions are taken and Governance
pages on the Council's website help to facilitate understanding of the relevant processes.

There has been continuous improvement in the arrangements for risk management in 2007/8 with
further development of embedding risks management across the Council, thereby providing the
basis for effective risk management policies and procedures.

The Risk Management Strategy was developed in 2007 and as part of best practice it has since
been reviewed and updated alongside the guidelines by the Audit Committee. The revised version
reflects the transfer of responsibility for risk to the Head of Risk & Insurance. It is an essential part
of the risk management toolkit as it ensures a consistent approach to the identification, mitigation
and monitoring of risk across the Authority. An embedded approach to risk management cannot
be demonstrated without a comprehensive Risk Management Strategy.

An assessment of the Authority’s Internal Control Checklist (ICC) is carfied out annually to test
and prove the internal control environment within the Council. The process supports the internal
Audit planning process, the Finance and Performance Review process and is also available to
External Audit. Quarterly risk management forums are held to share risk management best
practice, agree changes to the risk management procedures, identify risk management training
needs and agree the format of the ICC process. Comprehensive risk registers are maintained by
services to record risks and risk management progress relating to their service plan, team plans
and all major projects.

The Corporate Risk Register is monitored, reviewed and updated quarterly at Council Directors’
Group and twice yearly at Audit Committee.

Internal Audit continue to review and report on risk management arrangements in their interim and
annual reports, and provide a statement on the adequacy of risk management arrangements
across the Council.

The Finance & Performance Review process continues to review high level risks through
individual service risk registers whilst encompassing close monitoring of service delivery
performance, performance against budgets and budget reduction targets thus minimising the
chances of unachievable saving being incorporated in the budget. F&PR also reviews the
financial risk registers and challenge Cabinet Members and officers on it.

All committee reports include a section on risks, which contributes to Members being better
informed prior to deciding on policy and decision making. This aiso raises the awareness and
increases Member and Officer understanding of risk and the risk management process. There is
also now a single Use of Resources section to all committee reports.

A comprehensive Corporate Risk Register exists, providing clarity and ownership of those
potential risks that may have a direct impact to the corporate priorities, Progress on the
management of these risks and the inclusion of new corporate risks is discussed and agreed at
Directors Group. Updates are then taken to the Audit Committee.

As part of the annual budget and Councit Tax setting, the Chief Finance Officer identifies the
potential financial risks and contingent iiabilities facing the Authority in reaching his view on the
adequacy of balances and reserves. These risks are captured and monitored in a comprehensive
financial risk register which aiso tracks the mitigating actions required to minimise the likely impact
on the Council.

The financial risk register is controlled by the Chief Finance Officer but is owned by all members of
the Council Directors Group, and forms part of the regular financial monitoring programme to
Cabinet Resources Committes. it also forms part of the F&PR sessions, and at officer level is a
standing item on the regular "Section 151" meetings that the Chief Finance Oificer has with the
Heads of Finance.
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» Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s Audit
Commiltees — Practical Guidance for Local Authorities.

The Audit Committee’'s comprehensive terms of reference as set out in the Constitution
incorporate the core functions as identified by the CIPFA document The Commitiee has a
membership of non-Executive Members and is chaired by an Opposition Councillor. It has 5
meetings a year programmed into the Council's Calendar of Meetings. The Committee approves
its own work programme for each Council year.

s Ensuring compliance with refevant laws and regulafions, internal policies and procedures and
that expendifure is lawful.

Assurance on compliance with policies procedure laws and regulations is provided, in part, by
Internal Audit which conducts risk based audits on the highest risk areas. Other sources of
assurance come from external audit, other external inspectors (e.g. OFSTED, CSCI) and from
service management’s own internal control arrangements.

The Council has comprehensive policies and financial regulations which are reviewed at regular
intervals. These arrangements are directed at ensuring compiiance with all applicable regulations
and other relevant codes.

s (Arrangements for) Whistleblowing and for receiving and investigaling complaints form the
public are in place and well publicised.

The Council has a whistieblowing policy and counter-fraud guidance published on its website. The
whistleblowing policy aims to encourage staff and others to feel confident in raising serious
concerns by providing clear avenues through which those concerns can be raised and reassuring
staff who raise concerns that they will not be victimised if they have a reascnable belief and the
disclosure was made in good faith. The counter-fraud guidance is designed to assist in both the
detection and reporting of fraud. The Council has a well established three stage corporate
complaints process.

« [dentifying the development needs of members and senior officers in refation to their strategic
roles, and are supported by appropriate training.

The Council has Officer training and development policies embedded within its HR framework.
The aim of the policies is to assist in the achievement of the organisation’s aims and objectives by
providing opportunities for staff to gain the necessary skills and knowledge required to deliver high
level performance for the authority. The Council also has a performance appraisal scheme which
provides all staff with regular assessments of their performance and development needs in relation
to their work objectives. A Member Development Panel with representatives of all three political
groups meets to consider training and development for elected Members. Induction and other
courses are run internally for Members with both in-house and external speakers.

o Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and other
stakeholders ensuring accountability and encouraging open constitation.

The Council actively engages with all relevant stakeholders when developing its vision and
strategies. Residents Forums, Leader Listens meetings, a Civic Forum, a Citizen's Panel and
other extensive consultation arrangements are all elements of this active engagement. All
Committee meetings are open to the public and both agendas and minutes are available on the
Council's website. The ‘People’ section of the Corporate Plan’s Vision and Values recognises the
richness of Barnet's diversity and the importance of having an effective dialogue with faith, black
and minority ethnic groups and with those who are disabled. The Plan emphasises that the
Council needs to find innovative forms of engagement and new ways of communicating with
citizens. This will ensure they all have an equal opportunity to participate in the discussions that
will help the Council understand their needs and preferences and help them take greater control
over their lives and have the ability to make informed choices for themselves.

» [ncorporating good govemnance in respect of partnerships and other group working as

identified by the Audit Commission’s report on the governance of partnerships and reflecting
these in the authority’s overall governance arrangements.
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The success of the Council rests on its leadership role in bringing together other public services,
the voluntary and community sector and the business community. This work is co-ordinated
through the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP). An Executive chaired by the Leader of the Council,
brings together the most senior leaders from the main agencies that deliver public services in
Barnet. The Council also holds a Civic Network twice a year to bring together the widest range of
organisations in Barnet to help shape future strategy. Barnet’s Sustainable Community Strategy
‘Barnet: A First Class Suburb’ was launched on 1 April 2006 following extensive analysis of the
issues facing Barnet and residents' pricrities. It sets out a shared vision for Barnet in 2016 and
contains four themes:-

Investing in children and young people
Safer, stronger, and cleaner Barnet
Growing successfully

Healthier Barnet (including older people).

o000

Each of these is supported by more detailed ambitions and an Action Pian of activities that will
make a real impact on these priarities is updated annually and overseen by the LSP.

A process was put in place during 2007/08 to Incorporate the relationship between the Council and
the LSP into the Council’s Constitution. The relevant article in the Constitution sets out the role of
the LSP, where decision making responsibilities rests, the role of the Executive in ensuring
appropriate governance arrangements for the LSP and its subsidiary boards and in ensuring that a
partnership register is maintenance by the Council's officers and that the Council puts appropriate
scrutiny arrangements in place.

4. REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

The Council annually reviews the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system
of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by managers within the Council who
have responsibilify for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the
work of the internal auditors and by comments made by the external auditors and other inspection
agencies,

In year review mechanisms include the following:-

. The Executive is responsible for considering overall financial and performance
management and receives comprehensive reports on a regular basis. It is also
responsible for key decisions and for initiating corrective action in relation to risk and
internal control issues.

. There is a comprehensive Scrutiny function which holds the Executive o account.

. The Standards Commiftee have met regularly throughout the year to consider and review
issues relating to the conduct of Members. Their work has included reviewing the Code of
Conduct for Members and preparationftraining for the new requirements for dealing with
investigations into Members’ conduct.

] The Audit Committee met throughout the year to provide independent assurance to the
Council in relation to the effectiveness of the risk management framework and internal
control environment. The Committee met 5 times during the year receiving regular reports
on risk management, internal control, anti-fraud and governance matters. There are also
regular reports from the External Auditor, including the report to those charged with
governance (the ISA260 report).

. Internal Audit is an independent and objective assurance service to the management of
the Council who complete a programme of raviews throughout the year to provide an
opinion on the intemal controf, risk management and governance arrangement. [n
addition, the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team undertakes fraud investigation and proactive
fraud detection work which includes reviewing the control environment in areas where
fraud or irregularity has occurred. Significant weaknesses in the control environment
identified by Internal Audit and the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team are reported to senior
management and the Audit Committee. Both Internal Audit and the Corporate Anti-Fraud
Team produce annual reports to the Audit Committee,
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. The External Auditor's Annual Audit and Inspection Letter is considered by the Audit
Committee, the Executive and the Council’s Directors Group.

. The External Auditors completed their CPA Use of Resources key lines of enquiry
assessment during the year and awarded the Council's internal control arrangements a
score of 4 overall. The Use of Resources assessment overall retained a score of 3.

. The Business Improvement Team monitors Best Value and other Performance Indicators
on a quarterly basis.

. A Corporate Risk Register exists, which the Council Directors Group uses throughout the
year to review corporate risks and ensure that actions are being taken to effectively
manage the Councii’s highest risks. Services regularly review their risk registers and any
issues they consider to be a corporate risk are discussed at Council Directors Group prior
to inclusion in the Corporate Risk Register. Corporate risk management support services
in this process by attending management teams when requested.

The year end review of the governance arrangements and the control environment included:

. Obtaining reports from Services that key slements of the control framework were in place
during the year in their departments. They were also asked to identify areas where control
weaknesses had resulted in significant issues arising for the department and their
comments are reflected in this statement.

. Obtaining assurances from other senior management, including the S.151 Officer and the
Monitoring Officer, that internal control and corporate governance arrangements in these
essential areas were in place throughout the year.

. Validating assurances obtained by reference to documentation held and by comparing the
assurances provided to an evaluation of the effectiveness of the control environment.

. Reviewing external inspection reports received by the Council during the year, the opinion
of the Head of Internal Audit and ethical Governance in his annual report to management
and an evaluation of management information in key areas to identify any indications that
the control environment may not be sound.

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the
governance framework and a plan to address any weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the systems is in place.

5. SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES

In previous years the Statement on Internal Control identified items which required improvement,
and the Council has taken significant action to address those issues - in particular a considerable
amount of work has been done in the areas of governance of partnerships. There were no
significant issues affecting the Council's governance framework in 2007/08, however, the Council
is constantly looking to improve the governance framework and so has identified a number of
actions needed to further strengthen existing systems:-

¢ alocal Code of Corporate Governance will be introduced during 2008;
¢ afraining/development plan for Members will be developed in 2008;

» the Council’s parinership register is being extensively reviewed to ensure that it will record the
detait of all the Council’s significant partnerships;

» areview of the delegated powers arrangements will fake place in 2008,
« scrutiny arrangements will be made more effective in 2008,
« husiness continuity planning and support deficiencies to be addressed;

« a review of information management, particularly security of data in emails and on
laptops/data sticks, will take place in 2008;
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= arrangements to be put in place to ensure effective and proper local handling of Member code
of conduct complaints;

» steps will be taken in 2008 to reduce proportion of follow-up audits still being given limited or
no assurance;

s a Counter Money Laundering Policy will be put in place;

» further steps will be taken to ensure that appropriate risk management and health and safety
responsibilities are incorporated into managers job descriptions;

* implementation of a computerised risk management system to enable easier reporting and
greater visibility through wider access to include partnerships and Members.

8. CERTIFICATION

To the best of our knowledge, the governance arrangements, as defined above have been
effectively operafing during the year with the exception of those areas identified Section 5. We
propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our
governance arrangement. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for
improvements that were identified during the review of effectiveness and will monitor their
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

Leader of the Council: Date;

Chief Executive: Date:
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Statement of Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below apply to the Financial Statements of the Council and the Pension
Fund.

General

This Statement of Accounts has been prepared according to the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003.
The general principles adopted in compiling the accounts are those recommended by the Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting and the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) relating thereto
Published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). The code and related
SORP meet all requirements of proper accounting practice for local authorities in England.

As part of the general move toward aligning public sector accounting with that of the private sector and
international accounting standards, the 2007 Code of Practice requires a number of changes to the
presentation of the accounts together with consequent restatement of prior year's figures. The main
changes are: -

+ The replacement of the Consolidated Revenue Account and Statement on Reserves with an
Income and Expenditure Account, Statement of Movemnent on the General Fund Balance, and
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses,

« The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) format has changed in line with the new single entity
format. The HRA now comprises an HRA Income and Expenditure Account and a Statement of
Movement on the HRA Balance;

» The removal of the requirement to make a capital financing charge;

« Consequent on the above the format of the Group Accounts has changed, removing unnecessary
differences between group acecunts and single entity accounts,

s Any profit or loss on the disposal of general fund property, and in certain circumstances HRA
property, has now io be recognised in the accounts.

Best Value Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP)

BVACOP provides guidance in three key areas. The definition of total cost, trading accounts and service
expenditure analysis.

Associated and Subsidiary Companies (FRS2)

The 2007 SORP requires authorities to produce group accounts where group relationships occur with
associated and subsidiary companies.

Accounting for Retirement Benefits (FRS17) within Housing Revenue A ccount (HRA)

As day to day housing management is carried out by Barnet Homes, Barnet's HRA employs very few staff
directly. Because of the cost of obtaining a separate HRA aciuarial report, to split the notional cost of HRA
staff from those employed by the general fund cannot be justified. Therefore although the HRA has been
reported on a FRS17 basis, no attempt has been made to show a separate liability reiated to defined
benefit provision.

Accruals of Income and Expenditure
The accounts of the Council are prepared on an accruals basis in accordance with the Code of Accounting
Practice. This means that sums due to and from the Council during the year are included in the accounts

whether or not the cash has actually been paid or received in the year. This approach includes customer
and client receipts, employee costs, interest and supplies and services.
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Bad Debt

Barnet makes provision to adjust the carrying amount of debtors that may prove uncollectible. Once a
decision has been reached that it is no longer economic to pursue a debt, it is written off against this
provision.

Contingent Asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the local Authority’s control.

Contingent Liability
A contingent liability is either:

i.  a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed ohly by the
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whoily within the Authority's control, or

ii.  a present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that a transfer of economic
benefits will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
refiability.

ili.  Detail of any contingent liability is given in notes to the balance sheet.

Fixed Assets
+  Recognition

All expenditure where the Authority will benefit for more than one year, buying or improving fixed assets is
capitalised in the accounts and accrued. By definition this excludes routine repairs and maintenance which
are charged directly to service revenue accounts.

+ Measurement

Valuation of land and buildings accords with the statements of asset valéation principles and guidance
notes issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), as recommended by CIPFA.

The current asset values are based on certificates issued by the Borough Valuer. All assets are valued on
a rolling programme over five years, with the exception of housing stock which is re-valued annually.
Further information on valuation is given in note 23

s  Depreciation

All fixed assets are depreclated using the straight line method, with no residual value over their useful life.
The useful life of each of the authority's buildings is determined by the Borough Vaiuer, while the vehicles,
plant and equipment may vary according fo the nature of the items involved. It should be noted that fand
and investment properties are not depreciated under current regulations.

Accounting regulations applying to local authorities assets have changed as part of the move toward
aligning with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). it is now a
requirement to account separately for historic cost (actual expenditure on acquiring assets) and any
change in value due to a general change in prices etc. This will not be immediately apparent on the face of
the accounts but may affect the amount charged to an individual service's net cost. The charges are still
reversed out of the general fund balance reconciliation account and so have no effect on council tax.

» Impairment

The Borough Valuer reviews our assets annually for impairment. impairment is provided for assets where
there is a material reduction in value at the year end over and above normal depreciation. It is accounted
for in the year in which it arises.

Where the Authority transfers Housing stock (HRA) to a Housing Association at a nil or nominal value this
is treated as an impairment loss rather than a gain/ioss on disposal.
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s  Profit or Loss on disposal

Where the Authority disposes of an asset, the asset is revalued by the Borough Valuer prior to disposal.
The profit or loss is then calculated with reference to this updated carrying value. The exception fo this is
the transfer of housing stock to a Housing Association at nil or nominal value which is treated as
impairment (see above).

Charges to revenue in respect of capital

Service revenue accounts, including the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) are charged with a capital
charge for all capital assets used in the provision of services. Capital charge under the new SORP is now
equal only to the depreciation of the fixed assets consumed in delivering services. Previously services
also received a notional interest rate charge in addition to depreciation.

Services are charged with impairment loss in respect of economic consumption should this arise.

Capital charges have a neutral impact on the amounts to be raised from local taxation (Council tax), as
they are reversed in the Reconciliation of General Fund Balance.

Intangible Assets

Clarification of reporting requirements regarding intangible assets means that this category of asset is no
longer relevant to Barnet. Redundancy costs previously depreciated over a number of years as an ongoing
benefit to the authority are now written out in the year they are incurred. Software, previously included as
intangible, is now included as equipment. The opportunity has been taken to reassess the depreciation of
software in line with current thinking, which has substantially increased the depreciation charged for these
items.

Intra Group Transactions

FRS2 requires intra group transactions to be eliminated in full in the preparation of the group statements.

Capital Receipts

A capital receipt is income received on the disposal of a fixed asset. It is held in the capital receipts
unapplied account until either used fo fund capital spend or repay debt. Legislation requires a percentage
of HRA capital receipts to be transferred to a central pool for redistribution by the government.

Government Grants and Contributions

Government grants and other contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis. They are shown in the
accounting statements when the conditions for their receipts have been complied with and there is
reasonable assurance that the grant or contribution is to be received.

Grants and contributions relating to fixed assets are credited to the Government Grants Deferred Account
and released to Service Revenue Accounts in line with depreciation. As per depreciation, these amounts
are reversed in the Reconciliation of General Fund Balance to avoid impact on local taxation.

Leasing

The Councll has no material finance leases. Operating lease rentais are charged to revenue over the life of
the agreement.

Redemption of debt

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government and Housing Act 1988, the Council has set
aside a minimum revenue provision (MRP) of 4% for the General Fund. The Department for Communities
and Local Government (CLG) has introduced new guidance on MRP that is effective from 31 March 2008;
the duty to make an MRP will remain, however the most notable change is the abolition of a required MRP
of 4%. Councils will be required to make a provision that they consider prudent, alternatives will allow
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revenue provision to be spread over the life of the asset, which could be longer than 25 years as well as
depreciating the asset over its estimated life. Councils will be required to prepare an annual statement on
their policy for MRP for submission to full Council. There is no longer a statutory requirement for a
minimum revenue provision for the Housing Revenue Account and the Council has not set aside a
voiluntary amount

Reserves

Expenditure is charged to revenue and not directly to any reserve. For each reserve established, the
purpose, usage and basis of transactions are identified in the notes to the Council's financial statements.
The net effect of revenue sums set aside appears as an adjustment in the Income and Expenditure
Account. The movements are reflected in the notes to the core financial statements.

Provisions

The Council has made a number of provisions for liabilities that are certain to occur, but where the timing
and amounts are uncertain.

* Insurance Provision

Apart from bad debts, the most significant provision is for insurance. The level of the provision should
reflect the value of outstanding liabilittes. Internal insurance premiums charged to services are credited to
insurance and in most years this sum, together with commission earned, more than covers the claims paid
out. The accumulated funds therefore would meet any individual year's shortfall.

Estimations

The only significant estimations in the accounts are in respect of certain community care services where
revenue accruals have been made based on clients receiving care within the year for when invoices have
not been received until after the end of the financial year and Special Parking Account predicted income
recovery from unpaid penalty charge notices issued in 2007/08.

Investments
Investments are shown on the balance sheet at cost.

Pension Costs

Under Financial Reporting Standard 17 {(FRS 17) the Councll is required to account for retirement benefits
when It is committed to give them, even if the actual giving will be many years into the future. In line with
the requirements of the SORP the Council's actuary uses the AA Corporate Bond rate to calculate future
liabilities.

. Pension Reserve

The Pension Reserve is the financial accounting mechanism to ensure that FRS17 has no impact on
Councii tax.

The cost of providing pensions for employees is funded in accordance with the statutory requirements
governing each scheme.

Where the payments made for the year do not match the change in the Authority's recognised asset or
liability for the same period, the recognised cost of pensions will not match the amount required to be
raised in taxation. This difference is removed by an appropriation to or from the pension’s reserve, which
equals the net change in the pension’s liability recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account.

s Classification of Schemes

The Councit participates in two different pension schemes, one for teachers, an unfunded scheme
administered by the Department for Children Schools and Families (DCSF) and the Local Government
Pension Scheme for our other staff. The schemes provide members with a defined benefit pension related
to pay and service. The teachers’ scheme is, as said, unfunded, but the other is a funded scheme. For the
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purposes of FRS17 pension schemes are classified into two categories, Defined Benefit or Defined
Contribution. The Barnet scheme is classified as Defined Benefif. The teachers’ schemes of the DCFS,
although a Defined Benefit scheme, is treated as Defined Contribution scheme because it does not allow
the allocation of its liabilities and assets consistently and raliably to participant authorities

¢ Defined Benefit Schemes

The atiributable assets of the scheme are measured at fair value and include current assets and
investments. The attributable liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
method. Scheme liabilities are discounted at the AA Corporate Bond Rate. The surplus or deficit in the
scheme is the excess or shortfall of the vaiue of the assets in the scheme over or below the present value
of the scheme liabilities. The change in the defined benefit asset or liabllity is shown in the Income and
Expenditure Account and analysed into the following components, current service costs, interest cost,
expected return on assets and actuarial gains and losses, and past service costs and gains and losses on
settlements and curtailments.

¢ Defined Contribution Schemes
The Teachers scheme, whilst being a defined benefit scheme is treated as a defined contribution scheme

as explained above. This means that the pension costs reported for any year is equal to the contributions
payable for the scheme for the same period. The costs are recognised within Net Cost of Services.

« Cash

As at 31% March 2008 the London Borough of Barnet pension fund had £51.9m cash in hand which was
managed with the Council's cash as part of the Council's temporary investment strategy.

¢ Pensions

Further information on pension costs and the Pension Fund appear in the individual statements within the
accounts.

Siocks and work in progress

Stocks and stores are in the accounts at the lower of latest price paid or net reallsable value. Work in
progress on uncompleted jobs is valued at cost, including overhead allocations.

Support service allocations

The cost of central departments has been allocated 1o direct services on a variety of bases, reflecting the
work provided by these support services.

Exceptional ltems, Extraordinary ltems and Prior Period Adjustments

Where applicable and relevant exceptional items and extraordinary items are disclosed in the income and
Expenditure Account with full supporting notes.

The majority of prior period adjustments arise from corrections and adjustments and are accounted for in
the year they are identified. Material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in
accounting policy or correction of fundamental errors are accounted for by restating comparative figures
for the preceding year in the statement of account and notes and adjusting the opening balance of
reserves for the cumulative effect. More details and fuller explanations are given in the individual relevant
financial statements.

Post Balance Sheet Events
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between

the balance sheet date and the date when the financial statements were authorised for issue. Two types of
events can be identified:
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* those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date (adjusting events
after the balance sheet date}; and

+ those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the balance sheet date (non-adjusting events
after the balance sheet date)

The Euro
The position regarding the possible replacement of sterling by the euro continues to be moenitored and the

Council is ready to take prompt action should the need arise. As yet, no assessment, and thus no
provision, has been made in the accounts for any cost implications associated with the possible change.

Clive Medlam BSc., CPFA,
Chief Finance Officer
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SECTION 3

Core Financial Statements
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income & Expenditure Account

This account summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in providing services
and managing the Council during the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008. It includes all day to day
expenses and related income on an accruals basis, as well as the cost of fixed assets consumed in the
period and the projected value of retirement benefits earned by employees in the year.

2007/08 2006/07

On its services the Council spent:- Note Gross Gross Net Net

Expenditure  Income Expenditure Expenditure

£000 £000 £000 £000

Central Services to the Public 7,712 (4,196) 3,516 1,183
Cultural, Environmental & Planning Services 86,289 (15,499) 70,790 48,818
Children's & Education Services 340,639 (276,053) 64,586 29,445
Highways, Roads & Transport Services 36,376 (19,784) 16,592 15,102
Housing Services 295,447 (248.,850) 486,597 15,181
Adult Social Services 95,488 {15,375) 80,113 106,294
Corporate & Democratic Core Costs 14,048 (3,366) 10,682 4,525
Non Distributed Costs 9,180 (8,100) 1,080 6,821
NET COST OF SERVICES 835,190 (591,225) 293,965 227,368
Redundancy costs 1,197 1,144
Precepts & Levies 5 1,284 1,143
Trading Undertakings 6 387 1,318
Interest payable and similar charges 6,699 5,840
Contribution of housing capital receipts to
Government Pool 3,902 2,239
Interest & investment income {13,834) (7,655)
Pension interest costs & expected return on
pension assets 5,665 6,304
NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 299,264 237,699
Net operating expenditure was financed by: -
Demand on Collection Fund {(141,603) {136,565)
General Government Grant {11,824) {13,614)
Non-domestic rates redistribution (70,454) (67,586)
Transfer of Collection Fund deficit 1,362 1,471
Deficit for the year 76,746 21,406
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Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance

The Statement of Movement on General Fund Balance cornpares the Council's spending against the
Council Tax that it raised for the year, taking into account the use of reserves built up in the past and
contributions to reserves earmarked for future expenditure. It is a reconciliation statement that summarises
differences between the outturn on the income and expenditure Account and the General Fund Balance.

2007/08 2006/07
£000 £000

Deficit for the year on the Income & Expenditure Account 76,746 21,406
Net additional amount reguired by proper practices to be debited or
credited to the General Fund Balance for the year (83,745) (22,765)
Increase in General Fund Balance for the Year (7,000) (1,359)
General Fund Balance brought forward (22,371) {21,012)
General Fund Balance carried forward (29,371) {22,371)
Amount of General Fund Balance held by schools {11,924) (10,272)
Amount of General Fund Balance generally available for new
expenditure {17,447) (12,099)

{29,371) (22,371)
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General Fund Balance Reconciliation Statement

Net additional amount te be credited fo the General Fund Balance
for the

year comprising: -

Amounts included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required
by statute to be excluded when determining the Movement on General
Fund Balance for the year

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets

Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets

Excess of depreciation charged to HRA services over the Major Repairs
Allowance

Government Grants Deferred amortisation

Redundancy costs approved by the Secretary of State as capital
expenditure

Net charges made for retirement benefits as per FRS17

SORP are different from the amount of finance costs calcutated in
accordance with statutory requirements

Amounts not included in the Income & Expenditure Account but which
are required by statute fo be included when determining the movemsnt
of the General Fund Balance for the year

Minimum revenue provision for capital financing

Capital expenditure charged in-year to the General Fund Balance
Transfer from Usable Capital Receipts

Employer's contributions payable to the Pension Fund and retirement
benefits payable to pensioners

Transfers to or from the General Fund Balance that are required to be
taken into account when determining the Movement on the General
Fund Balance for the year

Housing Revenue Account Balance
Net transfer fo earmarked reserves

Landon Borough of Barne! Siatement of Accounts 2007/08 a3

2007/08 2006/07
£000 £000

(3,990) (5,151)
(83,986) (10,274)
(11,923) (9,777)
6,216 6,762
(1,197) (1,144)
(23,791) (34,144)
(65) 0
5,062 3,212
5,283 16
(3,802) (2,239)
22,993 21,998
(671) 1,131
6,226 8,825
(83,745) (22,765)




Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the Council for the year and shows the
aggregate increase in its net worth. In addition to the deficit sustained on the Income and Expenditure
Account, it includes gains and losses relating to the revaluation of fixed assets and re-measurement of the
net liability fo cover the cost of retirement benefits.

2007/08 2006/07
£'000 £'000
Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account 76,748 21,406
Surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets (77,525) (54,228)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension fund assets and liabilities (51,871) (35,714)
Movement on the Collection Fund (3,605) 1,792
Other (gains) / losses included in the Balance Sheet* (16,7386) (8,112)
Total recognised gains for the year (73,141) (74,858)
*Breakdown of Other Gains & Losses
£

As required by regulation 2,331
Capital grants in advance (4,867)
Capital receipts not relating to disposais of Fixed Assets (5,565)
Assets previously excluded from the Balance Ssheet (8,771}
MRR Interest (364)
Other Balance Sheet items 450

(16,786)
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Balance Sheet
This statement summarises the Council's assets and liabilities as at 31% March 2008.

__-:.;:-3_»1_.5;_'1\,'.?,.:5.1_ -1'2'00_3 31st March 2007

Notes 0. e000” £'000 £'000
Fixed assets ; 3
Operational assets
Council dwellings 1,090,000
Other land and buildings 467,140
Community Assets 7,433
Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment 7.021
Infrastructure assets 51,895 1,623,488
Non-operational assets
Investment Properties 34,889
Surplus Assets Awaiting Disposal 38,555
Assets Under Construction 34,747
108,190
Intangible Assets 25,433
Long term debtors 3,254
Long term investments 38,411
67,097
Total long term assets 1,798,776
Current assets
Stocks and works in progress 1,591
Temporary investments 181,500
Debtors 51,600
Payments in advance 6,226
Cash at Bank and in Hand 18,391
259,308
Current liabilities
Creditors (104,180)
Borrowing repayable within 12 months {5.,087)
Bank overdraft {14,866)
Provisions {8,356)
{133,489)
Net current assets 125,819
Long-term liabilities
Long term borrowing (210,500)
Government Grants Deferred (76,811)
Liabilify related to defined benefit pension (242,634)
scheme
(529,945)
Total assets less liabilities 1,394,650
Financed by
Revaluation Reserve 0
Fixed Asset Restatement Account 1,211,451
Financial Instrument Adjustment Account 0
Capital Adjustment Account : 97 339,282
Deferred Capital Receipts 36 2018 1,264
Usable capital receipts e 0, 35,925
Pension reserve 35 91,481) (242,634)
Major Repairs Reserve 35 9,580
Specific reserves M : 18,614 12,389
Balances 29 129,371 22,371
Balances — collection fund 34 792 187
Balances — housing revenue account ' 4,835
Total equity 1,394,650
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Cash Flow Statement

This consolidated statement summarises the movement between the Authority and third parties, both for

capital and revenue purposes.

REVENUE ACTIVITIES
Cash outflows
Cash paid to and for employees
Other operating costs
Housing benefits
Non-domestic rate pool
Collection fund precept payments
Payments to housing capital receipts pool
Cash inflows
Council tax etc.
Non-domestic rate pool
Local business rates
Revenue support grant
Rents
[DSS rebate grants
Other Government grants
Cash received for goods and services

{see note 1.)

SERVICING OF FINANCE

Cash outflows
interest paid

Cash inflows
Interest received

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES

Cash outflows
Purchase of fixed assets
Deferred charges and long term debtors
HRA capital receipts paid to pool.

Cash inflows
Sale of fixed assets
Capital grants received }
Other cash income

Met cash inflow before financing

MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESCURCES

Net { increase)/decrease in short term deposits

FINANCING
Cash outflows

New long term investments
Repayment of long term borrowing
Repayment of short term loans

Cash inflows

New short term [oans

New long term loans

Long term investment
{INCREASE)/DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (SEE NOTE 5.)

£'000

319,136
402,352
140,732
86,054
38,614
2,239

i 1

(150,133)
(87,586)
(83,755)
(13,614)
(51,858)

(159,323)

(263,718)

- (988,582) (138,479)

2006/07

£'000

989,127

(928,456)

74y

5,202

(6,850)

56,786
6,026
Q
62,812

(13,339)
(26,068)

- (687)
; (40,004)

60,661

(1,548)

22,718

(4,948)
{(105,000)
0

81,731

{9,550)

38,400

{109,948}
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Notes to the Core Financial Statements

1. Dedicated Schools Grant (DS G)

The Council's expenditure on schools is funded by grant monies provided by the Department for Education
and Skills, the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). DSG is ring-fenced and can only be applied to meet
expenditure properly included in the Schools Budget. The Schools Budget includes elements for a
restricted range of services provided on an Authority-wide basis and for the Individual Schools Budget,
which is divided into a budget share for each school. Over- and under-spends on the two elements are
required to be accounted for separately. The Council is able to supplement the Schools Budget from its
own resources and in 2007/08 applied an addifion of £20,000,000 in this manner.

Details of the deployment of DSG 2007/08 are as follows:

Schools Budget Funded by Dedicated Schools Central Individual Total
Grant Expenditure- Schools Budget
Lirmited
£'000 £000 £'000

Original DSG Allocation at start of FY 20,136 165,078 185,215
Adjustment for actual pupil numbers (86) 0 {86}
Reallocation of DSG by LBB (1,306 1,306] 0
Final DSG Allocation at end of FY 18,745 166,384 185,129
Actual Expenditure for year/ Grant allocated to school (19,364) (166,384) {185,749)
budget shares

{Over)/underspend for the year : {820)) 0 {620)
Top-up funding of DSG from Council Resources 20 0 20
Underspend brought forward from 2006-7 832 0 832
Over)/under spend carried forward to 2008-09 232 o 232

Note:The increase in the Individual Schools Budget of £1.3m is the allocation of the schools
contingency budget which was initally held in the centrally retained budget.

2, Undischarged Obligations Arising from Long-Term Contracts

In April 2006 the Council jointly with Enfield entered into PF] street lighting contract. The contract involves

86,000 items of street furniture and will increase the number of public lighting columns to around 30,000,
The contract will operate for 25 years and expires in 2031. Under this contract payments are made in
accordance with contractor performance. In 2007/08 the authority made payments of £3,326,124
(including £862,283 energy payments) and is committed to make payments up to £4,445 516 (including
£1,008,516 energy payments) in 2008/09. Contractor charge is smaller in earlier years and increases
during the core investment element of the programme, allowing surplus to be invested and interest to
reinvested into the project
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3. Building Control & Inspection
Local authorities are required to prepare a Building Control Statement under the Building (Local Authority
Charges) Regulations 1998. The results of trading were:-

Building Regulations Charging Account Non-chargeable Chargeable Total Building
Building Inspection Buildinwntrol Control Unit
2007/08 2007/08 2007-08
£'000 £'000 £'000
Expenditure
Employees 175 869 1,043
Premises 0 0
Transport 12 17 30
Supplies & Services 42 274 316
Central Support 61 307 368
Capital Account Charge 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 289 1,467 1,757
Income
Building Regulation Charges Fees V] (1,454) (1,454)
Miscellaneous income {55) 0 {55)
TOTAL INCOME (55} (1,453) (1,508)
(Surplus)/Deficit for Year

Comparatives 2006-07

Expenditure
Income
(Surplus)/Deficit for Year

4. Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets

In 2007/08 the Council disposed of 3 General Fund assets and 15 HRA assets. The disposal of these
assets came to a combined sale value of £5.7m (Note:- In addition to this sum the Council disposed
of 22 Social Housing Units under the ‘Right-to Buy’ scheme generating £3.3m).

In accordance with guidance from SORP the Council reaiised neither a gain nor loss on these
disposals, but did record impairments on 3 of the HRA assets prior fo disposal, as these transactions
were stock transfers to Housing Associations. These impairments are recognised in the Income &
Expenditure Account within the net cost of Housing Services and the Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) expenditure (see Note 7 to the HRA).
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5. Analysis of Levies and Precepts

The Authority helps to defray the cost of other organisations. It does this either as a statutory duty or
voluntarily, where it benefits the Council. Some contributions are made to London wide organisations,
such as Transport for London (TEL).

2007/08 2006/07
£000 £000
Included within Net Cost of Services:-

London Berough's Grant Scheme (Social Services) 1,165 1,143
Concessionary Fares Scheme (Highways, Roads & Transport) 10,989 10,238
North London Waste Authority (Cultural, Environment & Planning) 7,957 7,955
TFL Traffic Control Signals (Highways, Roads & Transport) 412 402
Other 0 5
sub total 20,523 19,743

included within Net Cperating Expenditure:-
Coroners Service 202 217
Environment Agency (land drainage) 248 156
Lee Valley Regional Park Authority 411 402
London Pension Fund Authority 423 368
sub total 1,284 1,143
21,807 20,886

6. Trading Undertakings

A number of operations that the Council undertakes are technically classified as Trading Operations. This
is where the client can choose who provides the service and is not obliged to use the Council run Trading
Undertaking. Most of the Council's Trading Operations provide services on an internal basis only to other
parts of the Authority and the accounts of those Trading undertakings are shown below:-

2007-08 2006-07
Income internal Expenditure Trading Trading
Recharges {Surpius)/ (Surplus)/
Deficit Deficit
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Catering {(4.442) (44) 4,561 74 957
Stores (151) 4 148 0 44
Transport (981) (4,944) 6,202 277 95
Building Cleaning (71) (787) 858 0 1
Schools Finance (712) 2 649 {61) 180
Cther (45) 28 113 97 41
Total {6,403) (5,742) 12,532 387 1,318

7. Discretionary Expenditure Aowable under Section 137 of the Local Government Act
1972

Almost all the provisions of this section of the 1972 Act have been superseded through the granting of
general "enabling powers’ fo local authorities in the Local Government Act 2000. Barnet has reviewed its
activities In the light of this and conciuded that no expenditure was incurred under any residual Section
137 powers for the past year
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8. Expenditure on publicity

Section 5 of the Local Government Act 1986 requires a separate account of expenditure on publicity.
The Council's expenditure on publicity is expedited through the Communications and Web teams. The
staff recruitment and advertising is incurred by the Council's HR department.

2006/07

£'000
Staffing costs 377
Other costs 80
Staff recruitment & advertising 661
1118

9. Local Government Goods and Services Act 1970
This Act empowers the Council to provide goods and services to other entities. During financial year 2007-
2008 income of £6,066 was received from outside (third party) bodies for providing printing services. The

reported figure for 2006-07 was £125,000 but it should be noted that this included income from LEA
Maintained Schools which are part of the Council.

10. Senior staff remuneration

The numbers of staff who received taxable remuneration in excess of £50,000 for the year was:

Renumeration Band 2006/07
£50,000 to £59,9989 184
£60,000 to £69,999 80
£70,000 to £79,999 17
£80,000 to £89,999 6
£80,000 o £99,999 7
£100,000 to £109,999 3
£110,000 to £119,999 4
£120,000 to £129,999 3
£130,000 to £139,999 2
£140,000 to £149,999 1
£150,000 to £159,999 0
£160,000 to £169,999 0
£170,000 to £179,999 1
£180,000 plus 0

Totfals i 308

These figures include staff working in LBB Maintained Schools

11. Leases

The Council does not own all of the property, vehicles, computers and other equipment it uses and the
authority acquires these items using operating leases.

2007-08 payments in respect of operating leases is £2.593m. The authority is committed to making further

payments of £3.323m in future years and has agreements promising income of £.515m in this regard. The
future outstanding lease commitments are:-
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Vehicles, Plant Operating leases, Operating leases,
Years & Equipment Leasee Leasor
£'000 £'000 £'000
2007-8 2,584 16 2,495
2008-9 2,038 3,288 2,718
2009 13 1,284 12,882 7,981
Beyond 2013 1 11,469 72,199

12. Members Allowances

The total allowances paid to members in financial year 2007-08 was £71,079,133 (£1,017,947 in 2008-07)

13. Related Party Transactions

Under law, all members and chief officers are required to declare any "Related Party Transactions’. In
essence, these are financial transactions that took place in 2007-08 between the Council and any external
organisation over which they have control or influence.

All members and chief officers were asked to complete a Related Party Transaction Declaration Form {o
this effect. The vast majority of these were nil returns. A handful of members sit on the board of non-profit
making bodies / charities that received grant from the Council. However, the number and size of these
grants paid in 2007-08 is not significant and the member / officer concerned would not have benefited
personally.

14. Pooled Budgets

Section 31 of the Health Act 1899 and the Local Authorities Partnership Arrangement Regulations 2000
provide for partnership arrangements between National Health Service (NHS) bodies, local authorities and
other agencies to improve health services by pooling resources and integrating services to client groups.
The Council and Barnet Primary Care Trust (BPCT) Health and Social Care Partnership operate various
partnership boards, however budgets are not pooled but are managed by jointly appointed officers, each
partner remaining responsible for their respective costs. The only exception is the pooled budget for
community equipment.

The actual expenditure on the pooled budget for community equipment was -
Statement of Account Notes - Pooled Budgets

2007-2008
Barnet
Total LBB PCT*

Purchasing of Equipment 1,443 703 740
Contract Management 570 370 200
Stock adjustment 1,132 1,132 0
3,145 2,205 940

Contributions (2,329) (1,214) (1,115)
816 991 (175)
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The confract with the existing provider of stock, whergby the council owned the stock, ceased on 31
March 2008. under the new arrangements starting on 1% April 2008, the council will no longer own stock in
stores as such the stock held in stores was used during 2007-08. The value in the balance sheet reflects
the expected purchase of the remaining stock by the new provider.

15. Audit Fees
The cost to the Authority of external audit and inspection fees are as foliows: -

| 2005-06

Aspect :
1 £'000

Fees payable to Grant Thornton UK LLP, the Council's appointed 1| 420

auditors, with regards to external audit service

Fees payable to the Audit Commission in respect of statutory inspection 1 138

Fees payable to Grant Thornton UK LLP for the certification of grant

100
claims and returns

Total 658

The figures shown above are net of VAT and are included in the 2007-08 Net Cost of Services on the
Income & Expenditure Account

16. Schemes under the Transport Act

No road charging schemes or workplace charge levies operational within the Authority in 2007/08.

17. Minimum revenue provision

Statute requires the authority to set money aside each year for the repayment of loans criginally taken out
to finance capital expenditure. This is called the minimum revenue provision (MRP). Under capital
accounting arrangements, the council’s services are charged depreciation reflect the consumption of
capital assets used. The depreciation charge is treated as the council’s revenue provision and any
variation from the statutory minimum is transferred between the capital adjustment account and the
income and expenditure account. Barnet's practice is not fo exceed the minimum required.

The figures were:

e 2007]08 2006/07
a GB £000

General fund minimum revenue provision 3,212
Depreciation Charges )0, {18,423)
Balance transferred from the capital adjustment account .1:1(85;500) {15,211)

The large depreciation figure this year is due largely to the writing out of what were formally intangible
assets.
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19. Financing of capital expenditure

Below is the year's capital expenditure on fixed assets and deferred charges:

£'000 £'000 £'000

Capital Receipts 9,322.00
Revenue contributions/MRA 16,236.00
Contributions including Section 106 receipts 4,001.00
Borrowing 28,490.00
Grants 26,610.00} 84,669.00
Plus: 2006/07 expenditure financed in 2007/08 3,034.00

87,703.00

20. Long Term Debtors

There was a decrease in the investment position during the year from an opening balance of £3.254m to a
closing position of £2.626m.

21, Assets Held

Below is a guide to the number of assets owned by the Authority: -

Assets 31 March 2007
Schools - nursery & primary * 49
Schools - secondary & special  * 18
Schools - referral units 1
Youth service facilities 4
Other education establishments 2
Libraries 14
Museums 2
Children's homes & hostels 2
Adolescent resources centre 1
Children & family centres 6
Day centres for physically disabled 1
Day centres for mentally il 2
Councjl dwellings 11,236

Garages 2,667

Car parks 25
Memorials etc 8
Community Assets - Parks & open spaces 174
Sports grounds 28
Golf courses 3
All weather playing areas 2
Athletics tracks 1
Swimming pools 3
Allotments (hectares) 91
Public offices 7
Other buildings 3
Vacant awaiting disposal 28
Schoal fand not attached to school assets 14
Borough roads & footpaths (fength in km) 725

* Excludes voluntary aided schools
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22. Capital Commitments

At 31% March 2008, the Council was contractually committed to expenditure amounting to some £88.566m. The
schemes are summarised across services as follows:-

Capifal Commitments

Service Area Total

£'600
Housing 17,977
Environment & Transport 2,708
Resources 1,080
Chiildrens services 76,800
TOTAL 98,566

23. Fixed Asset Valuation

The Council's Chief Valuer, Brian Smart (MRICS) values the Authority’s freehold property portfolio following
the statements of asset valuation practice and the guidance notes of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors. The values are updated as part of a rolling five-year programme.

Cperational properties are at either open market value, for existing use, or the depreciated replacement cost
where ho market for the asset exists. Houses in the balance sheet are at a discounted value to take account
of the properties being social housing. Non-operational assets and investment properties are priced on an
open market basis. Valuations do not include equipment and infrastructure (e.g. roads) that are included at
historic cost.

Changes in accounting regulations mean that the value of individual assets have to be split between the
historic cost of acquisition, basically how much it cost to buy i, and any revaluation of the asset due to
changes in market value. This is a technical accounting matter and is not shown on the face of the accounts
but affects the way services are charged for the consumption of the assets they use. The main impact is on
disposal of assets enabling any real gain or loss to be determined, as against any notional effect. Because of
the nature of local government, the values of assts in the balance sheet as at 31 March 2007 are determined
to be their historic cost. This is an expedient approach as the task of identifying the actual historic cost of all
assets across local government would involve a cost totally disproportionate to any possible benefit.

24. Stocks and Works in Progress

2007/08  Movement  2006/07
000 £000 £000

Works in - works in defautt
progress (43) 52
Stores - housing & central stores (30) 30
- transport stores 2 43
- road signs and equipment (32) 68
- social services aids for the disabled (1,132) 1,171
- libraries & museums Q) 27
- grounds maintenance (30) 37
- other 40 163
(1,228) 1,591

Under a pooled budget agreement with Barnet PCT, ownership of the stock relating to community equipment stores
(classified as “social services aids for the disabled”) passed to the Council on 1 July 2003, but will be split and
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apportioned between the PCT and the Council pro rata to their respective contributions in the event that this
agreement be terminated.

The Council has entered into a contract with a new provider for the provision of social care related equipment.
Under this new arrangement the ownership of the stock sits with the contractor rather than the Council.

25_ Assets Held Under PFI Arrangement

In April 2008 the Council joinfly with Enfield entered intc PFI street lighting contract. The
contract involves 6,000 items of street furniture and will increase the number of public lighting
columns to around 30,000. The contract will operate for 25 years and expires in 2031

Under this contract paymenis are made in accordance with contractor performance. In
2007/08 the authority made payments of £3,326,124 (including £862,283 energy payments)
and is committed to make payments up to £4,445518 (including £1,006,516 energy
payments) in 2008/09. Coniractor charge is smaller in earlier years and increases during the
core investment element of the programme, aliowing surplus to be invested and interest to
reinvested into the project

26. Debtors and Creditors
An analysis of the Authority’s debtors and creditors as at 31° March 2008 is as follows:-

2007/08  2006/07
£'000 £000

Debtors
Other local authorities 2,213
Government departments 12,557
Ratepayers & Taxpayers 22,633
Tenants {including temporary accommaodation) 13,332
Other public bodies 2,249
Sundry 31,005
sub total 83,889
L.ess: Provision for bad debts (32,289)
Net Debtfor Totai 51,600
Creditors
Other local authorities 10,593
Government departments 1,382
Ratepayers & Taxpayers 4,844
Other public bodies 2,147
Utilities 903
Pension Fund 28,304
Sundry 43,587
Receipts in Advance 11,420
Creditor Total 104,180
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27. Provisions

Provisions are amounts of money set aside to meet liabilities that have arisen from past events which are iikely to

result in future transfer of economic benefit to a third party. The precise amount and timing of this transfer of
economic benefit is uncertain. Provisions ate included as expenditure within the Net Cost of Services on the

Income & Expenditure Account.

Balance bffw In year New Provisions Balance 77 Note
01.04.2008 Expenditure/ raised inyear cffwd
Reductions 31.03.08:

£'000 £000 £1000 :

Grants to Voluntary Sector 58 48 0.

Insurance 7,849 0 451

Legal 475 425 -

Housing & Property 954 184 2,437 .

Disputed Invoices 0 0 195

Other 20 20 0. :

9,356 877 3,083 111,762

i. The insurance provision is for liabilities that have occurred but where the timing
of the payment is dependent upon the claim settlement process. The insurance
Provision reflects 100% of the Council's ultimate projected liabilities

it. This Provision primarily relates to the projected foss of likely loss of Housing Benefit
subsidy and to a lesser extent, back dated rent payable on leased property
following a rent review

28. Depreciation and intangible assets.

All fixed assets are depreciated using the straight line method, with no residual value over their useful life. The
useful life of each of the authority’s buildings is determined by the Borough Valuer, while the vehicles, plant and
equipment may vary according to the nature of the items involved. It shouid be noted that land and investment
properties are not depreciated under current regulations.

Clarification of reporting requirements regarding intangible assets means that this category of asset is no longer
relevant to Barnet. Redundancy costs previously depreciated over a number of years as an ongoing benefit to the
authority are now written out in the year they are incurred. Software, previously included as intangible, is now
fncluded as equipment. The opportunity has been taken to reassess the depreciation of software in line with current
thinking, which has substantially increased the depreciation charged for these items.

Accounting regulations for premiums on early repayment of debt now require that these are written out in the year
they are incurred. As an anomaly for local government accounting, pecuiiarly to the housing revenue account, such
premiums are not removed from the HRA balances immediately but written down from a holding account over the
outstanding original life of the loan. This is a mechanism to accommodate the Government's housing subsidy
arrangements.

29. Revenue balances

i} The general surplus is the Authority’s buffer against unpredictable events that are too large {0 be met
from reductions in current budgeted expenditure.

i) In the general fund are locally managed schools’ balances. Schools may carry balances, surplus or deficit,
forward to subsequent years.
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30. Reserves and balances held by schoois under delegated schemes

All Maintained Schools in Barnet operate delegated budgets. In essence, this means that the schools themselves
(rather than the Authority) are responsible for planning and managing their expenditure. As at the end of 31 March
2008 the accumulated surplus of these delegated budgets (excess of cumulated income over cumulated
expenditure) stood at £11.9m, an increase of £1.6m from the previous year. This surplus balance is under the
contro! of individual school goveming bodies for future spending for the purposes of their schools and is not
available to the Authority to apply to other purposes,

Schools Outturn as at 31/03/08
Total Balances

As at Increase /
Sector As at 31/03/08 31/03/07] (decrease)
£000 £000 £000
Nursery 338 260 77
Primary 7,400 6,601 799
Secondary 4,080 3,721 358
Special 353 401 (48)
Total 12,170 10,984 1,186

Ofst School GF Advances as at 31/03/08 246 712

Net School Balances 11,924 10,272
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31. Reserves

Reserves are pots of money set aside to cover expenditure in future years on a specified projects or major
Initiatives which would not be able to proceed unless money was set aside from 2007/08 resources.

The position on the Council’s Specific Reserves as at 31 March 2008 is shown below.

Reserve Type

Revaluation Reserve

Capital Adjustment Account

Financial instruments
Adjustment Account

Usable Capital Receipts

Pension Reserve

Housing Revenue Account

Major Repairs Reserve

General Fund

Specific Reserves

Collection Fund

Deferred Capital Receipts

Total

Notes

Balance Net

01/042007 MOVEMent
in year

£'000

1,650,733

35,825

(242,634)

4,835

9,580

22,371

12,389

187

1,264

B.".‘-‘lé'i‘-?ef ! " Purpose of reserv
31/03/2008 P °

£'000

Store of unrealised gains on
73,240 revaluation of fixed assets not yet

73240
realised through sales

(65,762) 1484971 Store of capital resources set

. - aside to meet past expenditure
Balancing account to allow for
.o differencesin statutory
{2,396) requirements and proper
: accounting practices for
borrowings and investments
Proceeds of fixed asset sales
40,221 available to meet future capital
investment
Balancing account to allow
191,461). inclusion of pensions liabiity in the
balance sheet

{2,396)

671 i 4 -1.6.4 Resqurces available to rneet future
- Tunning costs for council houses

- Resources ready to meet capital
investment in council housing

(7,001) _ 2 The prudent reserve to meet non-
| “ housing day to day running costs
(6,225) Money earmarked for future

’ : - projects.
., Balance of undistributed funds

(3,605} present within the Collecfion Fund

. Expected payments of mortgage
8 principal resulting from loans
:made by the Council

346

1,394,650

(54,384) 1,467,790

1 Pensions Note 35

2 HRA statements
3 HRA statements

4 Statement on Movement on General fund Balance
5 See table overleaf for details
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Balance  Transfers from Transfersto = ‘Balance
Nature of Specific Reserve 01/04/2007 Reserve Reserve - 31/03/2008
£000 £000 £000 .£000:
Capital projects 2,000 1,518 4518 5,100
Restructure, Redundancy &
Severence 3,686 99 255
Software & IS Licences 900 293 333
Utilities 500 - -
Litigation 1,000 862 1,870
Dedicated Schools Grant
(DSG) 832 832 232
Street Lighting 1,716 - 961 . .
Revenue Contributions 42 42 -
Recycling - - 200
Preventative Technology - - 333
implementation of IFRS - - 500
Future of the Council Review - - 400
Other Minor Reserves 1,613 1,056 915
Sub Total 12,289 4,702 10,617 .
Special Parking Acccount
(SPA) 100 - 310
Total 12,389 4,702 10,927

32. Net Assets

This statement analyses the Councils assets and liabilities as at 31™ March 2008 between the general fund and the

HRA.
Fixed assets Total HRA General Fund
£000 £000 £000
Operational assets 1,632,684 1,112,172 520,512
Non-operational assets 168,298 24,069 144,230
Long term debtors 2,626 2,626 0
Long term investments 15,505 0 15,505
Current assets 323,284 11,427 311,857
Current liabilities {172,041) (4,844) (167,197)
1,970,356 1,145,450 824,907

33. Trust funds

The authority is trustee to three charitable trusts, only one is significant, the Avenue House bequest. This is
managed and administered by the Avenue House Estate Management Charity (AHEM). AHEM are a charity in their
own right, totally independent of Barnet so no balances or transactions of the trust appear in Barnet’s accounts
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34. Collection Fund Balances

The council has to record transactions for council tax and business rates in a collection fund account. The balance
will be paid to or recovered from the account’s preceptors, the council and the Greater London Authority in future

years,

Preceptor 2006/07

£000
Barnet 145
Greater London Authority 42
Collection Fund Balance 187

35. Pension Reserve

The authority has its own defined benefit local government pension scheme. The authority’s contributions to
pensions earned by employees in the year of account are included in the net cost of services. The net pension
interest cost less expected return on assets counts against net operating expenditure. Pension interest cost is the
amount that current service cost increases as members of the scheme approach retirement. The actuary calculates
this using the projected unit method. These are all notional costs calculated to show the authority's true fiability
change for the year in line with pension regulations. To ensure that the net figure in the accounts is the actual
amount paid to the pension fund, that includes other sums, rather than a notional sum, the FRS 17 figure is
reversed out of the General Fund balance reconciliation statement and replaced with the actual figure:

2006/07

£000 £000
Net cost of services
Current service cost 20,677
Curtailment & settlements 6,856
Past service cost ; 307
Net operating expenditure 27,840
Interest cost S 31,661
Expected return an assets in the scheme _(25,357)

6,304

Amounts to be mef from government grants
and local taxation
Movement on the pension reserve (12,1486)
Amount charged for pensions in the year 21,998

The authority also contributes to the Department for Children, Schools and Families Teacher’s Pension Fund at a
rate of 14.1% of pensionable pay. The amount paid in the year , £11.0m is included in the education service costs.
Although this is a defined benefit scheme, the nature of it is such that the authority Is unable to identify its share of
the underlying assets and liabilities and so cannct report these, Contributions are set in relation to the current
service period only. A creditor in respect of contributions due to the Teacher's Pension Fund for £1.5m is included
in the accounts. During the year £24,000 was paid as mandatory compensation for teacher’s early retirement.
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The underlying assets and liabilities for refirement benefits attributable to the authority were:-

2006/07
£000
Estimated liabilities of the scheme (647,455)
Estimated assets of the scheme 404,821
Net asset/(liability) {242,634)
Year to
31/03/2007
£000
Difference between the expected and actual

return on assets (431)
Value of assets 404,821.00
Percentage of assets 0.1%
Experience gains/{losses) on liabilities (977)
Total present value of liabilities 647,455
Percentage of the total present value of liabilities -0.2%
Actuarial gains/losses recegnised in STRGL 35,714
Total present value of liabilities 647,455
Percentage of the total present value of liabilities 5.5%
2006/07
%
Rate of inflation 3.20
Salary increases (NB based on a 1.5% real) 4.70
Pension increases 3.20

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (NB based
on 3.2% real) 5.40

The liabilities are the underlying commitments that the authority has, in the long run, to pay retirement benefits. The
fotal fiability of £191.461m has a substantial impact on the net worth of the authority as recorded in the balance
sheet. The deficit will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as
assessed by the scheme.

An actuarial review has provided the figures required by FRS17. The fund's actuary has had to make a number of
assumptions about future events and circumstances in calculating the figures. This does mean that the resuiting
calculations are subject to uncertainties and those assumptions within a range of possible values. The last full
actuarial valuation of the fund was at 31 March 2007.

Members are able to elect to exchange part of their LGPS pension for additional tax-free cash at retirement and
allowance has been made for this in the calculations,

The main actuarial assumptions involved were: -

. Assets in the funds are valued at fair value, principally market value for investments and consist of the following
categaries, by percentage of the total assets held by the fund: -
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Equities
Bonds
Froperty
Cash

36. Deferred Capital Receipts

Deferred capital receipts largely reflect mortgage loans given to Council tenants to purchase Council dwelfings.
The amounts are written down by the annual repayments which are then transferred to usable capital receipts.

37. Government Grants Deferred
Government grants deferred includes capital grants and any other external capital contributions (including Section

106 planning gain monies, gifts, bequests, etc) that are credited fo the balance sheet and amortised to revenue
over the life of the relevant asset to offset charges for depreciation.

38. Post Balance Sheet Events

There are no post balance sheet events to report on,

39. Contingent Liabilities

The Council is subject to a substantial deficit claim from one of its service providers. The claim has been
reviewed by officers in conjunction with the Council's legal advisors and is being vigorously disputed.
Nonetheless, in the event of the worst case scenario, the claim could result in a significant call on Council
balances. '

40. Notes on Financial Instruments

introduction

A financtal instrument is any transaction which generates an asset in the accounts of one entity and a liability in the
accounts of another entity, For the most part, this covers (but is not limited to) borrowings, loans and investments,
The 2007 Statement of Recommended Accounting Practice (SORP) — which under law constitutes proper
accounting practice in Local Government - introduced changes to the why in which Local Authorities have to
measure, account and present their Financial Instruments.

The primary purpose of these notes is to assist the reader evaluate:-

s The significance of financial instruments on the Authority’s financial position and performance, and
» The risks arising from those instruments and how the Authority manages those risks

With regard to the latter point, it should be noted that the Authority has adopted CIPFA’s Treasury Management in

the Public Services Code of Practice and that it has set treasury management indicators to control key risk inherent
in financial instruments in accordance with CIPFA’s Prudential Code.
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Financial Instruments Balances

As required by the SORP, a breakdown of the Authority’s financial instruments is shown in the table below

Long term Current
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2008 2007 2008 2007
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Financial liabilities (borrowings) at
amortised cost 212,376 210,500 5,087 5,087
Total borrowings 212,376 210,500 5,087 5,087
Financial Assets (Loans and
receivables} at amortised cost 15,505 38,410 245,847 181,500
Total investments 15,505 38,410 245 847 181,500

Fair Value of Financial Instrumenis

The Authority's financial liabilities and financial assets are carried in the balance sheet at "Amortised cost’. The
Amortised Cost is arrived at by taking the initial amount of a loan advance, deducting the value of cash repayments
made in year and adding on the interest charged/credited to the Income and Expenditure Account. The SORP
requires the Fair Value of these instruments to be disclosed in the notes. The Fair Value of an instrument is the
amount for which it could be sold for in an open market — based on the present value of the future cash flows that
will take place over the remalning term of the instrument.

The fair values of the Authority’s instruments compared to the amounts carried on the balance sheet (using
amortised cost) are as follows:

31 March 2008 31 March 2007

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

£000s £000s £000s £000s
Financial liabilities | 217,463 213,010 215,500 196,828

The fair value is less than the carrying amount because the authority’s portfolio of loans includes a number of fixed
rate loans where the interest rate payable is lower than the rates available for similar loans at the balance sheet
date. This commitment to pay interest below current market rates reduces the amount that the authority would have
to pay if the lender requested or agreed to early repayment of the loans.

31 March 2008 31 March 2007

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

£000s £000s £000s £000s
Loans and receivables | 15,505 15,621 31,400 31,244

The fair value is higher for 31 March 2008 than the carrying amount because the authority's portfolio of investments
includes a number of fixed rate investments where the interest rate receivable is higher than the rates available for
similar investments at the balance sheet date. The guarantee to receive interest above current market rates
increases the amount that the authority would receive if it agreed to early repayment of the investment.

Nature and E xtent of Risk Arising from Financial Instruments
Key Risks
The Council’'s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, the key risks are:
v Credit risk — the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council;

v Liquidity risk — the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its commitments to
make payments;

v" Re-financing risk — the possibility that the Council might be requiring to renew a financial instrument on
maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms.
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v Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Councll as a result of changes in such
measures as interest rates movements.

Overal] Procedures for Managing Risk

The Council's overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets, and
implementing restrictions to minimize these risks. The procedures for risk management are set out through a legal
framework set out in the Local Government Act 2003 and the associated regulations. These require the Council to
comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice
and investment Guidance issued through the Act. Overall these procedures require the Council to manage tisk in
the following ways:

v by formally adopting the requirements of the Code of Practice;
v by approving annually in advance prudential indicators for the following three years limiting:
o The Council's overall borrowing;
o Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates;
o Its maximum and minimum exposures the maturity structure of its debt;
o Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year.

v by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setfing out its criteria for both investing and
selecting investmant counterparties in compliance with the Government Guidance;

These are required fo be reported and approved at or before the Council's annual Councll Tax selting budget.
These items are reported with the annual treasury management strategy which outlines the detailed approach to
managing risk in relation to the Council's financial instrument exposure. Actual performance is also reported
annually to Members.

These policies are implemented by a central freasury team. The Council maintains written principles for overall risk
management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the
investment of surplus cash through Treasury Management Practices (TMPs). These TMPs are a requirement of
the Code of Practice and are reviewed regularly.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council's
customers. Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they meet the minimum
requirements of the investment criteria outlined above.

The following analysis summarizes the Authority’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based on experience
of default and the Council's experience of its customer collection levels over the last five financial years, adjusted to
reflect current market conditions. The historical experience of default has been taken from Mocdy's, a credit rating
organization used by the Council and applies to the period 1982-2005. The amounts included in the table overleaf
are principal amounts and not at amortised cost.
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Historical Historical | Adjustment for Estimated
Amount at experience of | experience market maximum
31 March default -1 of default — ! conditions at exposure to
2008 year 3 year 31 March 2008 default
£000s % % % £000s
(a} (b) © (d} (a*d)
Deposits with banks and
financial institutions
AAA rated counterparties 8,600 0.000% 0.000% 0
AA rated counterparties 106,500 0.000% 0.000% 0
A rated counterparties 125,700 0.007% 0.007% 9
A rated counterparties 15,000 0.090% 0.090% 14
Trade debtors 17,025 5.000% 5.000% 851
272,825 874

No breaches of the Council's counterparty criteria occurred during the reporting period and the Council does not
expect any losses from non-performance by any of it's counterparties in refation to deposits.

The Council has an investment with Northern Rack ple, whose rating grade is A, and has besn included in this
category above. The Bank is currently nationalized and so the rating is that applicable to Government borrowing
(AAA). The nationalization applies with a three month notice period for de-nationalization and guarantees are
currently in force for long standing deposits.

The Council generally allows 30 days credit for its trade debtors, such that £8.4m of the £17.0m balance is past its
due date for payment. The past due amount can be analysed by age as follows:

£000s
Less than three months 1,385
Three to six months 417
Six months to one year 666
More than one year 5,981
8,429

Collateral — During the reporting period the council held no collateral as security.

Liquidity Risk

The Council has ready access to borrowings from the Money Markets to cover any day to day cash flow need, and
whilst the PWLB provides access to longer term funds, it also acts as a lender of last resort to councils (aithough it
will not provide funding to a council whose actlons are unlawful). The Council is also required to provide a
balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to

cover annual expenditure. There is therefore no significant rigk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its
commitments under financial instruments.

The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above (the setting and
approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the treasury and investment strategy reports), as well through
cash flow management procedures required by the Code of Practice.
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Re-financing and Maturity Risk

The Council maintains a significant debt and investment portfolic. Whilst the cash fiow procedures above are
considered against the refinancing risk procedures, longer term risk to the Council relates fo managing the
exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature. This risk relates to both the maturing of longer term
financial liabilittes and longer term financial assets.

The approved prudential indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits placed on investments
placed for greater than one year in duration are the key parameters used to address this risk. The Council
approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks and the central treasury team address the
operational risks within the approved parameters. This includes:

v monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through either new borrowing
or the rescheduling of the existing debt; and

¥ monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liguidity is available for the Council's day
to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments provide stability of maturities and
returns in relation to the longer term cash flow needs.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities at principal valug is as follows:

£000s

Less than one year 5,000
Between one and two years 3,500
Between two and seven years 60,000
Between seven and 15 years 8,000
More than fifteen years 139,000
215,500

The maturity analysis of financial assets at principal value is as follows:

£000s
Less than one year 240,800
Between two and three years 15,000
255,800

NB. Trade debtors of £17.02m are not shown in the table above.
Market risks

i) Interest rate risk - The Council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments.
Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Council, depending on how variable and fixed interest
rates move across differing financial instrument periods. For instance, a rise in variable and fixed interest rates
would have the following effects:

v borrowings at variable rates — the interest expense charged to the Income and Expenditure Account will
rise;

¥ borrowings at fixed rates — the fair value of the borrowing liability will fall;

v investments at variable rates — the interest income credited to the Income and Expenditure Account will
rise; and

v Investments at fixed rates — the fair value of the assets will fall.
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Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings
would not impact on the Income and Expenditure Account or STRGL.. However, changes in interest payable and
receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Income and Expenditure Account and
effect the General Fund Balance, subject to influences from Government grants. Movements in the fair value of
fixed rate investments will be reflected in the STRGL, unless the investments have been designated as Fair Value
through the Income and Expenditure Account.

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury Management
Strategy draws together Council's prudential indicators and its expected treasury operations, including an
expectation of interest rate movements. From this Strategy a prudential indicator is set which provides maximum
and minimum limits for fixed and variable interest rate exposure. The central treasury team will monitor market and
forecast interest rates within the year to adjust exposures appropriately. For instance during periods of falling
interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments may be taken for
longer periods to secure better long term returns.

if all interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would be:

£000s
Increase in interest payable on variable rate 0
borrowings
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate 0
investments
Impact on Income and Expenditure Account 0
Increase in Government grant receivable for financing 0
cosis
Share of overall impact debited to the HRA 0
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets 476
Impact on STRGL 0
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings 25.665
liabilities {(no impact on [+E Account or STRGL) !

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.
These assumptions are based on the same methodology as used in the Note — Fair value of Assets and Liabilities
carried at Amortised Cost

i} Price risk - The Council, excluding the pension fund, does not invest in equity shares and therefore has no
exposure to price risk.

iii) Foreign exchange risk - The Council has no financial assets or fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies. it
therefore has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.
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Notes to the Cashflow Statement

41, Revenue reconciliation

{Surplus)/deficit for year:

-General fund
-Housing revenue account

-Collection fund

Minimum revenue provision and capital
expenditure funded by revenue activities

Contributions from reserves and provisions
Capital debtors
Capital creditors

Interest; -paid

-received

(Increase)/decrease in creditors

(Increase)/decrease in payments in advance

Increase/{decrease) in stock and work in
progress

Increase/(decrease) in debtors

Pension Fund Cash

42, Movement in other current assets

Debtors

LT debtors

Creditors

Stocks and works in progress

Payments in advance
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2006/07
£'000 £000
(1,359)
_ (1,131)
(2,490)
(9.933) (1,793) (4,283)
(7,213)
(11,275)
1,377 (17,111)
(5,202)
6,850 1,648
73,326
3,336
145
3,600 80,407
0
60,661
12007408 Balance 2008/07
.-Movement Sheet Movement
: 31/3/07
£000 £1000
51,600 4,287
3,254 (687)
(104,179) 71,949
0
1,591 145
0
6,226 3,336
(41,508) 79,030
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43. Movement in liquid resources

Temporary Investments
Pension Fund Creditor
Temporary Investments

44. Movement in long term borrowing

Long term borrowing

45. Movement in cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash overdrawn

46. Reconciliation of net cashflow to movement in net debt

Movement in nef debt
Movement of cash in year

Totals

Cash outflow from long term barrowing

Short term borrowing cashflow
Movement in net debt in the year
Cpening net debt

Analysis of net debt
Temporary borrowing
Long term borrowing

imprests
Cash

London Borough of Bame! Slatement of Accounts 2007408

60

2007/08 Balance 2006/07
Movement Shest Movemant
b 31/3/07
£'000 £000 £060
181,500 (9,550)
(61,81 (29,304) 87,149
193977 41,781 152,196 77,599
Balance 2008/07
Sheet Movement
3143107
£'000 £1000
210,500 105,000
1 2007/08. Balance 2006/07
“Movement Shest Movement
31/3/07
£'000 £000
18,391 (760)
(14,866) 127
3,525 (633)
2006/07
£'000
0
(105,000)
g {4,048)
(2,183). (109,948)
< (212,062) (102,114)
L (214,245) (212,062)
2006/07
£000
(5,087)
(210,500)
18,391
(14,866)
(212,062)




47, Other government grants

Education (excluding DSG)

DsG

Community care and other social services
Asylum seekers

Council tax benefits administration

LABGI

Street Lighting PFI

Other

Totals

48. Capital expenditure and income

269,289

2006/07
£'000

55,826
173,792
22,033
781
2,229
3,441
2,141
3,475

263,718

Capital expenditure appears higher in the cashflow than in the notes to the balance sheet as gross expenditure on

and grants to long term debtors are shown here whereas in the balance sheet notes they are netted off.
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SECTION 4

Supplementary Financial Statements
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Housing Revenue Account

This account records the transactions relating to the Council's social housing stock. The Local Government and
Housing Act 1989 requires its separation. This gives a clear picture of the cost of providing homes for Council

tenants. Housing Revenue Account income and expenditure does not affect the amount of Council tax levied.

Housing Revenue Account Income and Expendture Account -

Notes

8,7

Income

Dwelling rents

Non-dwelling rents

Charges for services and faciliies
Contributions towards expenditure
Total Income

Expenditure

Repairs and maintenance

Supervision and management

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges

Negative Housing Revenue Account subsidy payable
Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets

Debt Management Costs

Increase in bad debt provision

Total Expenditure

Net Cost of HRA Services shown in Income and
Expenditure Account

HRA services share of Corporate and Democratic Core
HRA share of the whole authority non-distributed costs
Net Cost of HRA Services

Interest payable and similar charges
Interest and investment income
{Surplus) or deficit for the year on HRA services

Statement of Movement on the Housing Revenue Account

Balance
Deficit for the year on the HRA Income and Expenditure
Account
Difference hetween interest payable and similar charges
determined in accordance with the SORP and those
determined in accordance with statute:

EIR interest cost on stepped loans

Amortisation of premium on early repayment of debt

Difference between any other item of income and expenditure
determined in accordance with the SORP and determined in
accordance with statutory HRA requirements - Impairment

reversal
Transfer to/from Major Repairs Reserve

Housing Revenue Account Balances
Housing Revenue Account Balance brought forward

(Surplus)Deficit for the year
Housing Revenue Account Balance carried forward
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2006/07
£000

(41,428)
(1,249)
(7,129)

(49,806)

8,180
21,169
145
9,331

11,752

378

(3,484)
(9,777)

{1,131)

(3,704)
(1,131)

(4,835)




Housing Revenue Account Notes

1. Dwelling Stock

The authority’s dwelling stock comprised, at 31* March

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Houses 3,562 3,573
Bungalows 184 183
Flats 5,980 5979
Maisoneties 1413 1,417
Hostels ‘ 46 54
Bed sits 30 30
11,195 11,236
2. Balance Sheet Value of HRA Assets
Land &
Dwellings Buitdings Totais
£000 £'000 £'000
Balance Sheet Value at 1st April 2007 1,080,000 52,834 1,142,834
Balance Sheet Value at 31st March 2008 51,086,000 42,600+ 1128600
Vacant Possession value of Dwellings at 31st March 2008 1,723,000
Vacant Possession value of Dwellings at 31st March 2007 1,730,000

The vacant possession value of dwellings within the HRA at 31* March 2008 is as said above, £1,730m. The
difference between this value and the balance sheet value represents the economic cost of providing Council
housing.

3. Major Repairs Reserve

The major repairs allowance was introduced in 2001/02. It represents the estimated long-term average amount of
capital spending required to maintain the housing stock in its current condition.

Direction 7(5) of the HRA {Accounting Practices) Directions 2000 requires authorities to disclose in the HRA a note
setting out an analysis of movements in the Major Repairs Reserve.

. 2007/08; 2006/07
eom0 £000

Opening Balance as at 1% April (5,030)
Capital expenditure charged {o reserve {dwellings) 3,668
Depreciation

- dwellings (MRA) {15,172)

- non-dwellings (2,544}
Transfer to Housing Revenue Account

- dwellings {MRA) 7,233

- hon-dwellings 2,544
Interest on Balances (179)
Closing Balance as at 31° March {9,580)

The major repairs allowance represents the estimated long-term average amount of capital spending
required to maintain a local authority's housing stock in its current condition.
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4. HRA Capital Expenditure

The analysis of HRA capital expenditure and financing was as follows:-

The HRA capital expenditure was:- 2006/07
£000
Expenditure
Houses 24,743
Other property 985
Total 25,728
2008/07
Financing £000
Borrowing 18,281
Capital receipts reserve 1,822
Major repairs reserve 3,568
Other contributions 2,057
Total 25,728
5. Capital Receipts from Disposals
Capital receipts from disposals within the Authority’s HRA were as follows:-
200708 2006/07
: S 000
Land 4,334
Houses 3,389
Paid over to pool (2,239}
Total 5,484
6. Depreciation Charge
The total charge for depreciation within the HRA is:-
2006/07
£000
Houses 15,172
Other property 2,545
Total depreciation charged 17,717
7. Impairment Charges
The value of impairment charges within the HRA is:-
2006/07
£000
Land 0
Houses 3,484
Other property 0
Total impairment charges 3,484
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8. Debt premium written down

Amount amortised in year

2006/07
£000

378

Cash incentive grants , although capitalised are now written out in the year they are created.

9. HRA Subsidy

HRA subsidy payable by the authority was as follows:-

Management and maintenance
Major repairs allowance
Admissable Allowance
Charges for capital

Other items of reckonable expenditure
interest on receipts

Rent

Rent Constraint Allowance
Total for year

Prior year adjustments

Total! Payahle

10. Arrears

Arrears owing tc the HRA at the year end:

Leaseholder service charges

less bad debt provision
Housing rents

less bad debt provision
Commercial rents

less bad debt provision

Net arrears position at 31% March

-.2007/08: 200607
20 £000
19,337

(75)
(40,089)
233
787); (9,278)
(287). (53)
(10,054 (9,331)

2006/07
£000 £000
3,817
(752) 3,065
3,587
(1,779) 1,808
204
(24) 180
..... 5,053

11. Corporate and Democratic Core and Non-Distributed Costs

In accordance with SORP 2007 the Authority has debited a sum of expenditure to the HRA that represents
elements of the Corporate and Democratic Core that can be either directly apportioned to the HRA or fairly
apportioned under the principles of BVACOP overhead apportionment. A proportion of past retirement costs
included within the Non-Distributed costs have also been debited to the HR A Net Cost of Services.

12. ALMO — Barnet Homes Ltd

With effect from 1 April 2004, the management of all the housing stock of the Council was transferred to

Barnet Homes Ltd, an Arms Length Management Organisation {ALMO) wholly owned by the Authority.

13. Accounting for Pensions in the HRA

As day to day housing management is carried out by Barnet Homes, Barnet's HRA employs very few staff
directly. Because of this the cost of obtaining a separate HRA actuarial report, to split the notional cost of
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HRA staff from those employed by the general fund, cannot be justified. Therefore although the HRA has
been reported on an FRS17 basis, no attempt has been made to show a separate liability related to defined
benefit provision.
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Collection Fund

The collection fund is a statutory fund, separate from all other council funds. It accounts for council tax and non-
domestic rates to Barnet and the Greater London Authority, the two bodies for whom the income has been raised.

Income and Disbursement Account 2007!0_8 _
Collection Fund 2007/08 i

Note: 2006/07
£'000 £'000
income
Council Tax 1 153,147
Council Tax Benefits 24,331
Collectable business rates 2 85,982
T 263,460

Disbursement
Precepts:

- London Borough of Barnet 136,565

- Greater London Authority 38,992 175,657
Estimated deficit on collection fund: 3

- London Borough of Barnet (1,471)

- Greater London Authority {380) (1,851)
Non-Domestic Rates

- Payment to national pool 85,550

- Cost of collection allowance 432 85,982
Total dishursed 259 688
Council Tax

Change in bad debt provision 4 834

Written off 1,146 1,980

Fund surplus / (deficit) for year 1,792

263,460

Fund balance brought forward (1,605)
Fund surplus / (deficit) for year 1,792

Fund balance carried forward 187

London Borough of Bamel Statement of Accounis 2007/08 68




Notes to Collection Fund

1. Council Tax

Council tax is charged according to the Government's valuation of residential properties as at 1' April 1991. The
spread of valuations is classified into eight bands on which individual charges are calculated. The standard charge
is found by taking the total amount of income required by the collection fund’s two preceptors and dividing this by
the council tax base. The tax base is the total number of chargeable properties in all valuation bands converted to
an equivalent number of band D dwellings, with an allowance made for discounts and exemptions. The amount of
council tax required from a property in any tax band is the band D charge (£1,350.12 for 2007/08) muitipiied by the
ratio specified for that hand. The figures at the time of tax base calculation for the bands A to H were:

Band Ratio Ba.md D

Equivalents

A 0.67 892

B 0.78 5,420

C 0.89 18,789

D 1.00 24 177

E 1.22 31,461

F 1.44 24,265

G 1.67 23,367

H 2.00 6,691
MOD contribution 283
Tax Base 135,345

2. National non-domestic rates

Barnet collects non-domestic rates (NDR) from local businesses and organisations and pays them into the
Government’s central NDR pool. The Government's national uniform rate, 44.4p in 2007/08 (43.3p in 2006/07)
multiplied by the property's rateable value determine the amount charged. The aggregate business valuation for
the borough at 31st March 2008 was £234.0m (£235.8m at 31/3/2007).

The amount paid into the central NDR poo! is redistributed to local authorities, including Barnet, in line with their

overall Formula Grant allocations. In 2007/08, the Pool funded 86% of the Formula Grant distribution in England,
which for Barnet was £70.454m. This was paid directly into the general fund.

3. Collection fund surplus and deficit

The preceptor's share council tax surpfuses and deficits.

4. Council Tax written off

Where persons have absconded owing Council tax and, over several years, the money has proved irrecoverable,

the arrears are prudently written out of the accounts to give a true picture of income it is reasonable to expect to
receive. The arrears are still pursued.
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SECTION 5

Group Accounts
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Group Income and Expenditure Account

This shows the consolidated income and expenditure for the Council and its subsidiary company
Barnet Homes on its day to day activities. _
On provision of services the Group spent:- 0 2006/07

d. - Consolidated
Net

Expenditure

£'000

Central services to the public 1,183
Cultural, environmental & planning services 48,816
Children's & education Services 29,445
Highways, roads & fransport services 15,102
Housing services 10,585
Adult social services 106,294
Corporate & demacratic core 4,525
Non distributed costs 11,961
NET COST OF SERVICES 227,910
Redundancy Costs 1,144
Precepts & Levies 1,143
Trading undertakings 1,318
Interest payable and similar charges 5,830
Contribution of housing capital receipts to Government Pool 2,239
Interest & investment income (8,061)
Corporation Tax 115
Pension interest costs & expected return on pension assets 6,454
NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 238,092
Net operating expendifure was financed by: -

Demand on Collection Fund (136,565)
General Government Grant (13,614)
Non-domestic rates redistribution (67,586)
Transfer of Collection Fund deficit 1,471
DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR 21,799
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Reconciliation of the Single Entity Deficit to the Group Deficit

2007/08  2006/07

g '0'0_:- £'000
Deficit from LBB's Income & Expenditure Account 6,746, 21,406
Surplus arising from other entities included in the Group Accounts

393

Subsidiaries (Barnet Homes Ltd)
Associates
Joint Ventures

Group Account Deficit for the Year

75635 21,799

Group Statement of the Total Recognised Gains and Losses

This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the Group for the year and shows the
increase in net worth. In addition to the deficit sustained on the Group Income and Expenditure
Account, in includes gains and losses relating to the revaluation of fixed assets and re-measurement of

the net liability to cover the cost of retirement benefits

Group
Consolidated
2006/07
£'000
Deficit/(Surplus) for the year on the Income and
Expenditure Account 21,799
Surpius arising on revaluation of fixed assets (54,228)
Actuarial (gain) / losss on pension fund assets and
liabilities (37,834)
Movement on the Collection Fund 1,792
Other Gains & Losses included in the Group Balance
Shest (488)
(68,960)

Total recognised gains for the year
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Group Balance Sheet _
This statement summarises the Group's assets and liabilities of the Reporting Group as at 31> March 2008

Group-Balance Sheetas.  Group Balance Sheet
S ati31.03.2008. B as at 31.03.2007

£000 £000
Fixed assets
Operational assets
Council dwallings 1,090,000
Other tand and buildings 467,550
Community Assets 7433
Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment 7,021
Infrastructure assets 51,804
1,623,898
Non-operational assets
Investment Properties 34,926
Surplus Assets Awaiting Disposat 38,555
Assets Under Construction 34,747
108,228
intangible Assets 23,082
Unamortised Debt Premiums 2,351
Long term debtors 3,254
Long term investments 38,410
Total long term assets 1,799,223
Current assets
Stocks and works in progress 1,603
Temporary investments 186,500
Debtors 48,815
Payments in advance 6,226
Cash at Bank and in Hand 18,821
261,965
Current liabilities
Creditors {106,138)
Borrowing repayable within 12 months {5,087)
Bank overdraft (14,866)
Provisions (9,388)
(135,477)
Net current assets 126,488
Long-term Habllities
Long term borrowing (210,500)
Government grants - deferred (76,811)
Liability refated to defined benefit pension scheme (251,212)
Total assets less liabilities 1,387,188
Financed by
Revaluation Reserve i)
Fixed Asset Restatement Account 1,211,451
Financial Instrument Adiustment Account 0
Capital Adjustment Account 339,282
Usable capital receipts 35,925
Deferred capital receipis 1,264
Pension reserve {251,212)
Major Repairs Reserve 9,580
Specific reserves 12,388
Balances 23,487
Balances -~ collection fund 187
Balances —~ housing revenue account 4,835
Total equity 1,387,188
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Group Cashflow
This consolidated statement summarises the movement within the group both for capital and revenue
purposes.

1 Flow 2007-08°  Group Cash Flow 2006-07

£'000 £'000
REVENUE ACTIVITIES
Cash outflows
Cash paid to and for employses 319,136
Other operating costs 376,038
Housing benefits 140,732
Non-domestic rate pool 86,054
Collection fund precept payments 38,614
Payments ta housing capital receipis pool 2,239
962,814
Cash inflows
Council tax etc. {(150,133)
Non-domestic rate pool {67,586)
Local business rates (83,755)
Revenue support grant {13,614)
Rents (51,858)
DSS rebate grants {159,323)
Other Government grants (263,718)
Cash recelved for goods and services {114,598)
(904,586)
(see note 1.}
SERVICING OF FINANCE
Cash outflows
Interest paid 5,202
Cash inflows
Interest received (7,254)
(2,052)
CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Cash cutflows
Purchase of fixed assets 56,855
Deferred charges and long term debtors 6,026
Payments to housing capital receipts pool 1]
62,881
Cash inflows
Sale of fixed assets (13,339)
Capital grants received {26,068)
Other cash income (687)
(40,094}
MNet cash Inflow before financing 78,964
MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES
Net { increase)fdecrease in short term deposits {4,550}
FINANCING
Cash outflows
New long ferm investments 38,400
Repayment of long term borrowing 4]
Repayment of short term foans 0 38,400
Cash inflows
New long term leans {4,448)
New long term investments {105,000)
(109,448)
{INCREASE) /DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 3,368
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Notes to Group Accounts

1. Introduction

For a variety of legal, regulatory and other reasons, Local Authorities often choose (or are required) to conduct
their activities not through a single legal entity but through two or more legal entities which fall under its
ultimate control. For this reason the financial statements of the Local Authority do not necessarily, in
themselves, present a full picture of its economic activities or financial position. Because of this, The
Accounting Code of Practice requires a Local Authority to prepare Group Accounts if it has a controlling
influence over one or more other legal entities. The aim of the Group Accounts is to give an overall picture of
the extended services and economic activity that is under the control of the Local Authority. The London
Borough of Barnet (the "Reporting Authority’) has a subsidiary company, Barnet Homes Ltd, which it has full
control and influence over and therefore Group Accounts have been prepared.

2. Basis of Consolidation

The Group income and Expenditure Account, Group Balance Sheet and Group Cash Flow Statement have
been prepared by consolidating the accounts of the Reporting Authority (London Borough of Barnet) and its
subsidiary (Barnet Homes Itd) on a line by line basis. The accounts of Barnet Homes Ltd have been prepared
using similar accounting policies and practices to that of the Reporting Authority. However some accounting
policies and practices of Barnet Homes Ltd do differ in some respects from the Authority's due to legislative
reguirements. Any material differences are highlighted within the Accounts themselves.

3. Barnet Homes Ltd — An "Arms Length’ Management Organisation for Housing
i} Nature of the Business

Barnet Homes Ltd (Companies House Registration No. 4948659) was created by Barnet Council to manage
and Improve its Housing stock. The primary aim in establishing the company was to. remove i from onerous
public sector borrowing controls in order to allow greater commercial freedom. Barnet Homes Ltd, a “Not for
Profit’ company, took over responsibility for managing approximately 11,000 council homes in Barmet Council
In April 2004. 1t also took responsibility for almost 400 staif from the Council's Housing Services Department.
Barnet Homes Ltd is managed by a Board of 15 members made up of 5 Council nominees, 4 tenants, 1 lease
holder and 5 independent persons with professional skills and experience {o help run the services. Board
members are volunteers and only receive out of pocket expenses.

i) Relationship with the Authority

Under the Statement of Recommended Accounting Practice (SORP), Barnet Homes Ltd is deemed a wholly
owned subsidiary of Barnet Council. As such, the Council is required to consclidate the financial statements of
Barnet Homes Ltd with its own {single entity) accounts in order to form the Group Accounts. The Council holds
all the share capital in Barnet Homes and would be required to contribute £2 if the company was ever wound

up.
iiiy Financial Performance

in 2006/07 the Company made an operating surplus of £1.1 million. This compares to an operating loss of
£0.40 in 2006/07.

iv) Transactions with the Company

The Autherity paid the Company £28.308m in 2007/08 for the provision of housing management services and
repair & maintenance works to housing stock (£28.066m was paid to the Company in 2006/07). The Authority
provides the following services to the Company: -

The Authority leases premises to the Authority and alsc provides various support services e.g. Payroll. Total
charges from the Authority to the Company in 2007-08 were £2.9m {equivalent figure for 2006/07 was £5.1m).

Landon Borough of Barmet Statement of Accourts 200708 75




4, Group Cash Flow Statement

The Group Cash Flow statement was prepared in accordance with the 2007 Statement of Recommended
Practice (SORP) and forms part of the Group Statements. The Group Cash Flow Statement shows the
movement of cash in and out of the Group. However, cash flows reiating internally to the Group are eliminated
as are any intra-group gains and losses. Only cash receipts and payments that flow to and from the Group as
a whole are included.

5. Accounts
The full set of Financial Statements for Barnet Homes Ltd can be obtained from: -

The Head of Financial Services
Barnet Homes Ltd

9* Floor

Barnet House

1255 High Street

Whetstone

London N20 OEJ

Tel: 0800 389 5225
Internet Web Address: hitp:/fwww barnethomes.org
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SECTION 6

Pension Fund
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PENSION FUND

Administered under the Local Government Superannuation and Pension Fund Acts

FUND ACCOUNT
Notes 2007/08 2006/07
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Contributions and  Similar
Payments
Contributions receivable — from | 5,2 8,807 8,240
employees
- from employers 1 5,2 33,368 27.317
Transfers in 2 2,156 44,431 4,313 34,870
Benefits and Similar Payments
Pensions payable 2 {23,866) (22,082)
Lump sum benefils payable 2 {4,502) {6,028)
Death benefits 2 (419) (28,787) (132) (28,242)
Refund of contributions 2 (19} (23)
Transfers out 2 (2,724) (2,743) (5,150) (5,173)
Administration and other | 8 (832) { 840)
scheme expenses
Net Additions from dealings 12,069 5,615
with Members of the Fund
Returns on Investments
ihvesiment Income 2
interest on fixed interest securities 4,891 4,811
Dividends from equities 13,621 8,957
Income from Index - Linked 219 180
hiterest on cash deposits 2,144 1,785
Other income 583 21,458 88 15,821
Change in market value of~ 7
- realised invesiments 21,112 19,362
- unrealised investments (42,934) 619
investment management | 4,6 {2,101) {1,424)
expenses
Taxation (471} (24,394) {321} 18,236
Net returns on investmenis (2,936) 34,057
Net fund (decrease)/increase 9,133 39,672
during the year
Opening net assets of the 539,602 499,830
scheme
Closing net assets of the 548,635 539,502
scheme
NET ASSETS STATEMENT AS AT 31st March 2008
Notes 2008 2007
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Government securities - fixed | 2,6,7 46,547 46,547
interest
- index | 2,6,7 20,912 67,459 11,919 58,466
linked
MNon Government — fixed interest 2,6, 7 12,081 1,640
- index linked 2,6,7 12,081 1,640
Pooled investment vehicles 2,8, 7 11,090 9,906
Property unit trusts 2,67 34,104 53,468
UK equities 2,86,7 177,627 196,735
QOverseas equities / funds 2,87 179,570 178,198
Overseas bonds 2,6, 7 12,290 414,681 9,180 447 487
494,221 507,593
Current nat assets
- sundry debtors 4 3,964 3,618
- sundry creditors 4 (1.420) 2,544 (1,013} 2,605
Cash 5] 51,870 29,304
Total net assets 548,635 539,502
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NOTES TO THE PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

1. Fund operation and membership

The Pension Fund is a defined benefit scheme for employees administered by the London Borough of Barnet
(the Council} under the provisions of the Local Government Superannuation and Pension Fund Acts. It
provides retirement and death grants besides retirement and widow’s pensions. Contributions from the
Authority, eighteen scheduled bodies (Middlesex University, two colleges, one academy and fourteen schoois)
and various other Admitted bodies, further details of which can be found at Note 5. Contributions are also
made by the employees with the basic contribution rates set at 6% of pay except for manual workers employed
prior to 1st April 1898 for whom it is 5%. The contribution rates payable by employees will change with effect
from the 1st April 2008 as a result of changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme. Future contribution
rates will be tiered and related to salary and will range from 5.25% to 7.5%, these rates will be applicable to all
employees including manual workers. The funds investments will generate returns that when combined with
the contributions will balance the future liabilities of the fund.

At 31™ March 2008 there were 6,933 employees contributing to the fund with 5,052 in receipt of benefit and
5,443 entifled to deferred benefits. A Government scheme supplies teacher's pensions; they are not provided
for under these arrangements.

The funding policy is to ensure that the assets held by the scheme in the future are adequate to meet accrued
liabilities allowing for future increases in pay and pensions.

2. Accounting policies

These accounts are drawn up on the basis of the accruals concept and comply with the recommendations of
CIPFA and the Statament of Recommended Practice (SORP), as applicable to local authorities.

Contributions

The Council adheres to the provisions of the Local Government Pension Scheme. Confributions receivable are
included in the accounts on an accruals basis. Under the provisions of this Scheme, the rate of contributions
requested from employees is set at 6% (5% for manual workers who entered the scheme before 1% April
1998}, and the employer’s contribution rate is adjusted to bring the Fund to 100% funded level. Further details
of employer contributions policy is set out in Note 5 to these accounts.

Benefits

Benefits are provided in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Pension Scheme, which
states that retiring employees are entitled to a pension equal to 1/80 of their final salary for each full year of
thelr employment, calculated on a daily basis and restricted to a maximum of 40/80ths of the employee’s final
salary. They are accounted for in the period in which they fall due. Full details of the other benefits payable can
be seen on the Borough's Intranet page at www barnetpensions.org.

Investment Expenses
investment management expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Administration Expenses
These are a percentage of the London Borough of Barnet's expenses plus the direct costs of the Pension’s
section within the Human Resources department.

Interest

Interest is calculated on the cash held on behaif of the Pension Fund at a rate equivalent to 7 day LIBOR and
added to the account of cash due to the Pension Fund on a monthly basis. interest income from investments is
accounted for on an accruals basis, if not received by year end.

Dividends
Dividends are accounted for on an accruals basis, but are included in the accounts only when dividends are
declared on or before 31 March and the amount to be paid is reasonably known.

Purchase and Sale of Investments
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The purchase and sale of investments is delegated to the fund managers and ail settiements are accrued on
the day of trading. Investments in the managed funds are valued at the average mid price quoted by the fund
managers, while investments in Property Unit Trusts are valued at mid market price. See note 6 for fuller
details. The three fund managers: Schroder Investment Management, MidasCapital Partners Ltd and Newton
Investment Management are required to produce a return on investments within benchmarks set by the
London Borough of Barnet, and must limi¢ the amounts invested in each class of asset to ranges set by the
Authority. These restrictions and the fund managers’ analysis of the assets and issuing bodies, dictates the
timing of sales and purchases of investments. Approximately 6% of the Fund is held in property unit trusts and
cash arising from these unit trusts is administered by the staff of the London Borough of Barnet acting on
advice received from the Authority's independent investment advisor.

Transfers into and out of the Fund

Transfers into the Fund are accounted for when received and undertaken at the request of staff joining the
Borough cr one of its admitted or scheduled bodies with pension rights accrued elsewhers. Transfers out are
accounted for on the payment basis and performed upon request from staff leaving the employment of the
Borough or one of its admitted or scheduled bodies who wish to transfer their accrued pension contributions to
their new employer. Transfers are undertaken in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government
Pension Scheme.

Foreign Currency Translation
Foreigh currency receipts and payments are franslated into sterling at the rate ruling on the date of the

transaction. Investments held in foreign currencies as at year-end have been franslated at the rates prevailing
on 31 March 2008.

SSAP 24

The pension costs included in the accounts accord with current Government regulations. These regulations
allow non-compliance with SSAP 24 ‘Accounting for Pension Costs’. The liabilities included in the balance
sheet are understated in SSAP 24's terms (see note 4 below).

3. Statement of Investment Principles

The Council approved the Statement of Investment Principles for the fund in May 2000. The Statement can be
viewed on the pension's website www. barmelpensions.arg. Copies are also available from the Directorate of
Resources,

4. Net current assets
Net current assets at 31% March 2008 totalled £2.5m and comprised:

Debtors Creditors Net

£000 £000 £000
Settlements on purchases/sales 1,178 {1,235) (57}
Investment income 1,861 1,961
Fund manager's fees {185) (185}
Tax to be reclaimed 736 736
Payments in advance (Newton Invest Mngt} 20 20
Sundry debtors/creditors 69 69
Total 3,964 {1,420) 2,544

The Fund's financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other liabilities arising
after the year end.

5. Actuarial position

The Local Government Superannuation Regulations 1986 set out legal requirements for actuarial valuaticns.
Their main purpose is to assess the amount the Council must pay towards the fund’s liabilities. Hymans
Robertson LLP, the independent actuary to the fund, reviews the accounts every three years. The last formal
actuarial valuation of the fund was carried out as at 31st March 2007. The funding level was 71% compared to
66% as at 31st March 2004. The latest informal valuation as at 31st March 2008 as per the requirements of
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FRS17, used the roll — forward approach together with the following assumptions (the figures in brackets relate
to 31* March 2007, and are given for comparisony);

Assumed price inflation 3.60% (3.20%)

Rate of return on investments

Equities 7.80% (7.80%) per annum
Bonds 5.70% (4.90%) per annum
Property 5.70% (5.80%) per annum
Cash 4.80% (4.90%) per annum
Overali 7.10% (7.20%) per annum

5.10% (4.70%}) per annum
3.60% (3.20%) per annum
6.90% (5.40%) per annum

Future pay increases
Future pension increases
Discount rate

The market valuation of assets for past service appraisal was £402.3m (£404.8m). This valuation indicates that
assets held at 31st March 2008 were sufficient to cover 67% of the accrued fiabilities assessed on an ongoing
basis. The financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the
year-end.

The fund should receive input sufficient to meet 100% of its overall liabilities (Local Government
Superannuation (Amendment) Regulations 1993). The Government has aliowed local authorities to decide
themselves how long to phase in this requirement. Barnet has chosen a period of twenty years, which
commenced 1% April 2004. The actual employer's contribution for 2007/08 was £33.4m the common Rate of
Contribution payable by each employing authority under Regulation 77 for the period 1st April 2005 to 31
March 2008 is 21.3% of pensionable pay.

Contributions 2007/08 Benefits payable 2007/08
Employees Employers

£000 £'000 £000
LB Barnet 5,809 21,390 24,374
Scheduled bodies:
Middlesex University 1,532 6,491 3,348
Schools & Colleges 759 2,592 134
Admitted bodies:
Barnet Homes 421 1,666 442
Fremantle Trust 138 536 158
Open Learning 21 Y| 0
Partnership
Housing 21 101 268 53
Greenwich Leisure 36 77 17
Others 90 317 262
Totals 8,907 33,368 28,788

6. Management of the Fund

The Pension Fund Committee appointed by the Council comprises six elected members (two from each
political party). This committee counsels the Deputy Director of Resources and Chief Finance Officer about
investment of the fund. The W.M. Company also provides an independent performance measurement service.

Apart from internally managed hoidings in property unit trusts, the fund is split between three balanced-fund
managers, Midas Capital Partners Lid, Newton Investment Management Ltd, and Schroder Investment
Management L.td. The fund managers report transaction details at quarterly meetings with the Pension Fund
Committee. An independent fund advisor monitors the three fund managers for the Council and advises
Council officers and members on the in-house managed property unit trust partfolio.

Cash in hand and the market value of funds as at 31st March 2008 held by the managers totalled £494.2m

Schroders managed 38% of the fund, Midas 14%, and Newton managed 33% of the fund. The property unit
trust element of the fund represents 6% and the remaining 9% of the fund is held in cash.
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The property part of the fund is managed in-house and is invested in property unit trusts; the total market value
of this fund (excluding income earned) was £31.7m.

The cash element of the fund is also managed in-house by the Council's treasury team; interest totalling £2.1m
(£1.8m)" was eamed during the year. The average cash balance held during the year was £32.0m (£35.9m)
and the average interest rate applied was 5.71% (4.9%), which represents the average 7-day LIBOR? rate. The
average daily interest was £4,958 (£4,610). The year-end cash balance was £57.9m (£29.3m).

Current market valuation of the assets is based on current market cenvention whare they are primarily traded.
This is either the last traded or middie market price. When representative prices are unavailable, investments
are valued on the most appropriate basis in the opinion of the relevant fuind manager.

7. Investment Transactions and Performance
Purchases of investments during 2007/08 were £231.7m (£305.5m) and sales proceeds were £223.3m
(£199.0m). Profits/ {Losses) on realisation were £21.1m (£19.4m).

As shown in the net asset statement, the fund invests in fixed interest stocks, UK equities, property (indirectly
through unit trusts) and overseas equities and bonds. There were no investments in unlisted securities during
the financial year under review. The fund also holds an interest earning cash balance, invested with the
Councll as mentioned above.

The fund made a general return in 2007/08 of -0.7%. The W.M. Company's statistics show that the average
return for local authority pension funds was -2.7% and that Barnet was in the 23rd percentile of funds
measured.

8. Prior Year Adjustments
There were no prior year adjustments.
9. Related Party Transactions

The administration expenses of £0.83m shown in the main accounts above were incurred by the London
Borough of Barnet and are broken down as follows:

2007/08 2006/07

£'000's £'000's
Human Resources 522 648
Accountancy administration 163 72
Payroll support 147 120
Total 832 840

There were no materiat transactions between the Fund and the Trustees of the Fund, or between the Fund and
the senior officers of the Borough, during the financial years 2007/08 and 2006/07.

The independent Fund Advisor who also monitors the fund managers on behalf of the council was paid a fee of
£9,500 for this service during the financial year under review.

10. Post Balance Sheet Events
There were no post Balance sheet events in the year under consideration.

! Figures in parentheses are for 2006/07.

% Lendon inter-bank offer rate.
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Glossary
For the purpose of compiling the statement of accounts, the following definitions have been adopted:

Accounting Policies

Those principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by an entity that specify how the effects
of transactions and other events are {o be reflected in its financial statements through:

(i) recognising

(i} selecting measurement bases for, and

(] presenting assets, Habilifies, gains, [osses and changes to reserves.

Accounting policies define the process whereby transactions and other events are refiected in financial
statements. For example, an accounting policy for a particular type of expenditure may specify whether
an asset or a loss is to be recognised; the basis on which it is fo be measured; and where in the revenue
account or balance sheet it is to be presented.

Accounting Standards

A set of rules explaining how accounts are tfo be kept. By law, local authorities must follow ‘proper
accounting practices', which are set out in Act of Parliament and in professional codes and statements of
recommended practices. These standards aid it standardisation, making comparability, among other
things, possible.

Accrual

The recognition of income and expenditure as it is earned of incurred, as opposed to when cash is
received or paid.

Actuarial Gains and Losses
For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because:

(a) events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the iast valuation (experience
gains and losses), or

(b} the actuarial assumptions have changed.

Assets

These can either be:

s Fixed assets — tangible assets that give benefits fo the Authority for more than one year.

s Community assets — assets that the local Authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no
determinable useful life and that may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples include parks and

hisforic buildings.

s Council Dwellings — these are owned by the Council providing services to the communities. Such
examples include leisure centres, libraries and museums.

+ Vehicles — These assets are used by the Council for the direct delivery of services, such examples
include dust carts.

« Eauipment — Held by the local Authority in the delivery of those services for which it has either a
statutory or discretionary responsibility or for the service or strategic objective of the Authority.

» Infrastructure assets — fixed assets that are inalienable, expenditure on which is recoverable only by
continued use of the asset created. Examples of such fixed assets are highways and footpaths that
cannot be fransferred to another owner.
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= Investment property — includes land and buildings held by the Authority that are awaiting sale or
development. This category also includes some property let on a commercial basis as well as some
property that is for the good of the community.

+ Non-operational assets — fixed assets held by an Authority but not used or consumed in the delivery of
services or for the service or strategic objectives of the Authority. Exampies of non-operational assets
include investment properties and assets that are surplus to requirements, pending their sale. It should be
noted that the incidence of rental income does not necessarily mean that the asset is an investment
property; it would be deemed an investment property only if the asset is held solely for investment
purposes and does not support the service or strategic objectives of the Authority and the rental income is
negotiated at arm’s length.

Associate Company

An organisation is an associate of a parent local Authority where the Authority holds a fong term,
participatory interest and is in a position to exercise a significant but not dominant influence over that
organisation,

Benefits

Benefits can be received in the form of future economic benefits or in the form of service potential. Assets
that are used to deliver goods and services in accordance with the reporting Authority’s objectives but
which do not directly generate net cash inflows can be described as embodying 'service potential’. Assets
that are used to generate net cash inflows can be described as embodying ‘future economic benefits’.

Best Value Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP)

BVACOP sets the financial reporting guidelines for local authorities. It supplements the principles and
practice set out in the code of practice on local Authority accounting (known as the SORP), by
establishing practice for consistent reporting. It provides guidance in three key areas:

-The definition of total cost

-Trading accounts

-Service expenditure analysis

Capital Adjustment Account

This provides a balancing mechanism between the different rates at which assets are depreciated under
the SORP and are financed through the capital control system.

Capital Expenditure

Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure which adds fo and not merely maintains the
value of an existing fixed asset. it is not necessary for the asset to be owned by the Authority e.g.
renovation grants.

Pefined Benefit Scheme

A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme. Usually, the
scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable, and the benefits are not
directly related to the investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded or unfunded (including
notionally funded).

Defined Contribution Scheme

A pension or other retirement benefit scheme into which an employer pays regular contributions fixed as
an amount or as a percentage of pay and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the scheme does not have sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits relating to
employee service in the current y ear and prior periods.
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Depreciation

The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the fixed asset that have been consumed
during the period.

Consumption includes wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset whether
arising from use, effluxion of time or obsolescence through either changes in technology or demand for
the goods and services produced by the asset.

Events After the Balance Sheet Date (Post Balance Sheet Events)

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, favourable or unfavourable, that occur between the
balance sheet date and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.

Financial Instrument

A financial instruments any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
of another. They include both the most straight forward assets and liability (e.g. cash and creditors) and
the most complex (e.g. embedded derivatives).

Fixed Asset Restatement Account

Due to changes resulting from the 2007 SORP, this account is now defunct and has been replaced by the
Revaluation Reserve.

FRS's

Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board requiring information to be
shown in accounts.

General Fund

The revenue fund of the Authority, it shows income from and expenditure on the Council's day to day
activities.

Government Grants

The amounts of money the Authority receives from the Government and inter-government agencies to
help fund both general and specific activities.

Government Grants Deferred

Capital grants that are credited to the balance sheet and amortised to revenue over the life of the relevant
assets to offset charges made for depreciation.

Historic Cost
The actual cost of an asset in terms of past consideration as opposed fo its current value.
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

The account which shows the income from and expenditure on the provision of Council housing. Other
services are charged to the general fund.

Impairment

A reduction in the value of a fixed asset, greater than normal depreciation, below its carrying amount in
the balance sheet.
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Joint Venture
A joint venture is where a parent local Authority holds an interest on a long term basis in an organisation

and that organisation is jointly controlled by the local Authority and one or more other entities under a
contractual arrangement.

Leases

These may be finance leases that transfer the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the
Authority. Alternatively they may be operafing leases that are more akin to a hire agreement.

Liabilities

Amounts the Authority either owes or anticipates owing to others, whether they are due for immediate
payment or not.

Long-term Contracts

A contract entered inte for the design, manufacture or construction of a single substantial asset or the
provision of a service {or a combination of assets or services which together constitute a single project),
where the time taken substantially to complete the contract is such that the contract activity falls into

different accounting periods. Some contracts with a shorter duration than one year should be accounted
for as long-term contracts if they are sufficiently material to the activity of the period.

Major Repairs Allowance (MRA)

The MRA is a government subsidy that was infroduced to replace Housing Revenue Account borrowing
for repairs to maintain the housing stock to a good standard.

Major Repairs Reserve (MRR)
This reserve is for capital expenditure on HRA assets.
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

The minimum amount that the Council must charge to the revenue account in the year in respect of the
repayment of principal of borrowing for capital purposes.

Non-domestic rate (NDR)

The rates paid by businesses. These rates are collected by local authorities and paid over to the
government. They are then redistributed to local authorities on the basis of relevant population.

Net Book Value

The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their historical cost or current
value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. The NBV should not be taken to represent a
current market value.

Operational Assets

Fixed assets held and occupied, used and consumed by the local Authority in the direct delivery of those
services for which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility or for the service or strategic
objectives of the Authority.

Outturn

Actual income and expenditure in a financial year.

Pension Reserve

This is an adjustment account that manages the effects of FRS 17 charges made to the Income and
Expenditure Account against the statutory requirements for meeting the cost of retirement benefits from
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local taxes, as well as absorbing the impact of actuarial gains and losses. It normally balance exactly the
pensions liability carried in the top half of the balance sheet.

Prior Period Adjustments

Those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting policies or from
the correction of fundamental errors. A fundamental error is one that is of such significance as to destroy
the validity of the financial statements. They do not include normal recurring corrections or adjustments of
accounting estimates made in prior years,

Precept

The amount of income demanded of the collection fund by an Authority entitied to such income.

Preceptor

An Authority entitled to demand money of the collection fund. The preceptors on Barnet's coliection fund
are the Council itself and the Greater London Authority.

Provisions

Amounts held in reserve against specific potential liabilities or losses where there is uncertainty as to
amounts and/or due dates. Payment to a provision is counted as service expenditure; expenditure against
a provision is therefore not charged to revenue as this would be double counting.

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)

A Government body that lends money to local authorities for periods in excess of one year, often at
preferential interest rates.

Rateable Value

Assessment by the Inland Revenue of a property’s value from which rates payable is calculated.
Related Parties

Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financlal period:

6] cne party has direct or indirect control of the other; or

(i) the parties are subject to common control from the same source; or

{iif} one party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party to the extent
that the other party might be inhibited from pursuing at all times its own separate interests; or

(fii} the parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source to such an
extent that one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own separate interest.

Related Party Transactions

A related party transaction is the fransfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services by, to or for
a related party irrespective of whether a charge is made.

Reserves

Amounts prudently held to cover potential liabilities. Payments to reserves are not counted as service
expenditure. Payments from reserves are passed through service revenue accounts, as against
provisions, where it is not. Earmarked reserves are allocated for a specific purpose. Unallocated reserves
are described as balances.

Lonhdon Borough of Bamel Statemoni of Accounts 2007/08 87




Revaluation Reserve

This holds unrealised revaluation gains arising from 1 April 2007 from holding fixed assets that will be
realised on disposal.

Revenue Support Grant

A general grant payable to support local authorities' revenue expenditure. A local Authority's RSG
entitement is intended to make up the difference between expenditure and income from the NNDR pool
and Council tax. Revenue support grant is distributed as part of formula grant.

Stocks

The amount of unused or unconsumed stocks held in expectation of future use. When use will not arise
until after a later period, it is appropriate to carry forward the amount to be matched to the use or
consumption when it arises.

Subsidiary

An organisation is a subsidiary of a parent local Authority if the Authority has either a majority share in the
organisation or exercises a dominant influence over it.

Substance over Form

Financial Reporting Standard 5 requires that the substance (real effect on the Authority) of a transaction
is reported rather than just actual monetary movements (substance over form) at the time they happen.
That is future liabilities or gains are recognised in the accounts when they are incurred rather than just
when paid for or received. '

This largely refers to assets where benefits or Liabilities of ownership pass without legal title or they may
endow future liabilities or gains. In Barnet's case for instance a lsase agreement's transactions will show
the actual amount paid or received in the year, but there is a liability for future payments or receipts for
the life of the lease, these are recognised in the accounts,

Useful life

The period aver which the local Authority will derive benefits from the use of fixed asset.
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